



### TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION	DESCRIPTION	PAGE
1	Theory of Operation	
2	Glossary	
3	General Description	6
4	Installation	
5	Adjustments	
6	Changing the INTERSECTOR IP Addres	s 23-31
7	Maintenance	
8	Parts List	
9	Electrical Interconnection Details & Dra	wings34
10	Schematics	
11	Assembly Drawings	
	Simulation Mode	
Appendix B	TCIB Connections	В
••	Windows 7 Set-Up	
	Changes in 1.9U Software	
	-	U.S. Patent 8,842,022

INTERSECTOR

NOTE: For information concerning changes made to INTERSECTOR software revision 1.9U, please see the Addendum at the end of this manual.

### THEORY OF OPERATION

The INTERSECTOR sensor uses FSK microwave radar to identify, classify, and track vehicles by position and speed. This information is overlaid in an X-Y coordinate system, allowing users to set up detection zones. Presence of a vehicle in a user-defined zone will produce an output to the control output. Users are able to set a maximum presence time, and associate unique outputs, time delays, or output delays with individual zones.

The interface board monitors whether the sensor is functioning, and provides a means for end users to set up zones via a connection to a laptop computer. It also provides the outputs to the control panel, and includes LEDs which allow end users to verify operation without having to connect to the laptop.

## GLOSSARY

MAIN SCREEN: The main screen is the first screen that will be displayed when the INTERSECTOR is connected to the Setup Port of the Interface board and a laptop is also connected to the Laptop Ethernet Port. From the Main Screen you will have two options: 1. SETUP

### 2. ZONE SETTING

SETUP: This page will give the installer five options:

- 1. SIMULATION MODE ON: This turns on SIMULATION MODE and will allow the installer to set the number of vehicles that will be displayed in SIMULATION MODE.
- 2. SIMULATION MODE OFF: Turns off SIMULATION MODE so you can monitor live traffic again.
- 3. SET DEFAULT VALUES: This will allow the installer to reset the sensor to factory settings.
- 4. DELAY BEFORE MAX: Controls how long the target vehicle will be detected before the target will be changed to OZP/MAX presence timer.
- 5. OZP/MAX TIME: Occlusion Zone Protection (OZP) is a timer that will count down the value set in the OZP/MAX TIME field. This timer will begin when the Delay Before Max timer has expired, or if occlusion occurs, and a vehicle disappears from the zone. When the OZP/MAX TIME reaches 0, the vehicle will be dropped from the zone. It is recommended that the value for the OZP/MAX TIME is set relatively short (20 seconds), to avoid vehicles being held for long periods. The vehicle ID will be highlighted in a yellow box while the OZP timer is active.
- 6. SET RF CHANNEL: Assigning a value of 1-7 in this field will select the RF channel that the INTERSECTOR sensor will use for operation. For best results, use a different channel for each sensor used at an intersection.



### **GLOSSARY** (continued)

ZONE SETTING: This is the main entry to the PROGRAMMING SCREEN for the INTERSECTOR.

PROGRAMMING SCREEN: This is the area where the installer can setup detection zones, Offset Angle, and track vehicle progress. This screen consists of three main parts: The TARGET SETUP TABLE, VEHICLE TABLE, and DATA DISPLAY.

SET ZONE DATA: This function stores zone data to hard memory. When any data is changed on the PROGRAMMING SCREEN, it will only be stored when this is selected.

TARGET SETUP TABLE: This section of the PROGRAMMING SCREEN is where all setup data will be entered to be installed to the INTERSECTOR. The Table consists of several data values:

- ZONE: Zone is the term used to describe the area where the vehicle will be detected. In some cases this is known as the "loop". Up to 8 separate zones can be created.
- X: X is the first coordinate used to determine the location of a zone. The X coordinate is the horizontal dimension and represents the distance from the sensor to the center of the zone in the X axis (Diagram 1).
- Y: Y is the second coordinate used to determine the location of a zone. The Y coordinate is the vertical dimension and represents the distance from the sensor to the center of the stop bar zone (Diagram 1).
- Y Front: This value extends the zone in front of the original point (closer to the intersection).
- Y Behind: This value is the depth of the zone behind the original point (farther from the intersection).
- Width of Zone: This is the width of the zone in relation to its center.
- DELAY TIME: Time that the detector will wait before allowing the output to be recognized.
- EXTENSION TIME: Time that the output will extend after a vehicle leaves the zone.
- OPTO OUTPUT: This value indicates the output for the controller input (rack). A setting of 0 indicates the output for this zone is currently disabled.



### **GLOSSARY** (continued)

- VEHICLE COUNT: This is the total count of all vehicles that have entered this zone.
- BIKE: Selecting "Bike" will ignore larger vehicles and send a signal if a bike is present in the zone and moving at a speed of 18 mph (29 kph) or slower for those who want to provide additional time when bicycles are present.
- PULSE: This setting is used as a vehicle counter, typically in the advanced detection zone. When in PULSE MODE, a 0.125 second pulse for every vehicle that enters the zone will be displayed. The zone will not be held, and will display only one pulse per car. A zone in PULSE MODE will be highlighted in blue while a vehicle is present.
- ZONE DESCRIPTION: User defined description of the zone that has been set up.
- BREAD CRUMBS: This feature simplifies zone alignment by displaying the path that each detected vehicle has traveled, illustrating lanes of traffic flow.
- TECH MODE: Technician Mode this display control allows the service technician to observe the operation as vehicles pass through the zone. Normally indication would specify merely detection or non-detection (On or Off). Technician Mode will also allow the technician to observe if the vehicle has stopped in DELAY BEFORE MAX or if it is in OZP.
- DAYS, HOURS, MINUTES, AND SECONDS: This indicates the service time of the sensor.
- SET SENSOR ORIENTATION: This is the section where the X and Y coordinates are entered to calculate the Offset Angle that will allow electronic alignment of the sensor to the center of the desired detection area. Installers may enter the X and Y coordinates, or the Offset Angle. If the X and Y coordinates are entered, the Offset Angle will be automatically calculated. The Offset Angle can then be modified if necessary.
  - 1. X is the distance left or right of the sensor to the center of the desired detection area (left will be a negative number, right will be positive).
  - 2. Y is the distance from the sensor to the center of the stop bar zone.
  - 3. Offset Angle is typically between -12° to +12°.

# TABLE SETUP SECTION: This section consists of features useful in setting up the TARGET SETUP TABLE.

**ZONE SELECT**: This value selects the zone to be programmed.

ID: This value selects the identification of a vehicle in the VEHICLE TABLE which can be found directly below this setting. This value is used to copy the data of the selected vehicle.

COPY DATA: Selecting this feature will enter the information for the selected ID to the corresponding zone selected in Zone Select, in the TARGET SETUP TABLE.



### **GLOSSARY** (continued)

CLEAR VEHICLE COUNT: Resets the VEHICLE COUNT for all zones.

- UNIT SELECT: This feature will allow information to be entered in either feet or meters. Changing from one unit to the other will automatically convert numerical data in the table.
- CONFIGURE: Selecting the configure button will open a drop down menu that will allow outputs to be assigned certain features, such as Tail Extensions, Wrong Way detection, or speed ranges. For more information on Configure options, please see page 18 in the Adjustments section.

SET DISPLAY AREA: Repositions the DATA DISPLAY area based on the following settings:

• MOVE LEFT OR RIGHT: Moves the DATA DISPLAY area left or right based on

the value entered. A negative value moves left, a positive value moves right. STOP/START: This feature is used to Stop or Start the display of live data. The main use is to stop the display of data when a vehicle is present at a desired location. The data for this vehicle can then be copied into the TARGET SETUP TABLE using Copy Data, to establish a zone.

OPTO OUTPUT: This is a visual indication of the sensor outputs that correspond to the interface board LEDs.

VEHICLE TABLE: This is a real time data table for the vehicle activity shown on the DATA DISPLAY. This information can be used for setting up zones or tracking intersection activity. When the Stop button is selected, the data displayed will pause, and can be copied to the TARGET SETUP TABLE. The actual data will continue to be gathered, even when the displayed data is paused. When the live display is restarted, the data will update to show the current values.

ID: The ID number is assigned to a vehicle (Vehicle Number) to aid in copying the data to the TARGET SETUP TABLE.

VEHICLE NUMBER: This is the vehicle number that appears in the DATA DISPLAY area of the screen.

X POSITION: This is the X position of the corresponding vehicle as it relates to the sensor.

Y POSITION: This is the Y position of the corresponding vehicle as it relates to the sensor.

SPEED: This is the speed for the corresponding vehicle.

DATA DISPLAY: This is the area that graphically displays the vehicle activity detected by the sensor.



### **GENERAL DESCRIPTION**

The INTERSECTOR is a microwave vehicle motion and presence tracking sensor designed for intersection control. The INTERSECTOR offers several advantages when compared to cameras or loop detectors:



- · Detection is not affected by weather
- Immune to sunrise/sunset or post-rain glare
- · Not susceptible to in-road breakage
- Multiple lanes can be covered by a single unit
- Easily installs overhead to corner signal poles (Traffic lane closure may not be required)
- No privacy concerns
- Reduces construction costs (no special poles/bucket trucks required)

Through its user interface, the INTERSECTOR allows users to visually track vehicles as they approach the intersection and allows easy setup of detection zones to provide programmable inputs to a traffic control cabinet. The interface also provides the ability to verify that the system is functioning properly, or to troubleshoot the system, using a SIMULATION MODE.

### INSTALLATION

### INSTALLATION PREPARATION



NOTE: Remember to read all installation instructions carefully prior to installation of the unit. For a quicker installation, carefully pre-screen installation location. Prior to installation of the INTERSECTOR, please complete the INTERSECTOR worksheet. The worksheet is included with this manual.

Please inspect mounting location to ensure the following criteria are met:

- Mounting height should be between 14 feet and 20 feet.
- Distance from the sensor to the stop bar should not exceed 140 feet.
- Distance from the sensor to the closest detection zone should be at least 50 feet.
- Typical range of the TC-CK1-SBE is 600 feet.
- The TC-CK1-SBE has a detection width of 30 degrees. For best results the sensor should be mounted at a tilt angle between horizontal to 3 degrees downward plus or minus the road slope.
- Installation requires a laptop with Internet Explorer version 6.0 or greater, at least 2 GB RAM available, safe cable & Ethernet cable.

#### TOOL REQUIREMENTS:

To properly install the INTERSECTOR, it is necessary to have the following tools on hand:

- Angle Meter
- 7/16" Box Wrench or Socket
- Ethernet Cable Tester
- Modular Plug Termination Tool (Crimp Tool)

The INTERSECTOR is designed to be mounted at a height of 14 to 20 feet on a corner signal pole or on a mast arm no further than 10 feet from the signal pole. Maximum offset angle from traffic direction should be ±15 degrees. Mounting outside this range may reduce performance. Mount the sensor to the pole using stainless steel banding or bolts (not included). Make sure the sensor is mounted level.

#### **INTERSECTOR ANGLE SETTINGS:**

There are two angle settings for the INTERSECTOR; side to side (azimuth) and up and down (elevation). The azimuth setting is accomplished visually using the gun sight at the top of the unit. Aim the gun sight across the center of the stop bar region. Check to ensure that cars should be tracked approximately 30 feet past the stop bar for a left turn lane. To set the elevation, use the angle meter which is included in the INTERSECTOR installation kit. The Installation Table Recommended Settings below provides initial settings for installation, based on the distance to the stop bar. These settings may need additional adjustment depending on factors such as the slope of the road. Rotating the unit downward will decrease total range, but will ensure detection closer to the unit.





Connection of the sensor to the traffic cabinet is accomplished using an Ethernet cable. The cable is routed through a quick connect assembly that is then connected to the sensor. The other end of the cable is routed to the traffic cabinet and plugs into the interface board. The next section will detail the preparation and installation of the sensor Ethernet cable.

#### QUICK CONNECT ASSEMBLY INSTRUCTIONS:

The quick connect consists of a shielded Cat. 5e RJ45 Plug, a load bar, and a Plug Housing Assembly.





It is necessary to prepare the cable and insert it through the housing prior to attaching the load bar and Ethernet connector (RJ45 plug).



NOTE: Cat.5e direct burial shielded cable is recommended to keep Electromagnetic Interference, or (EMI), from effecting the ability of the cable to transmit data. EMI can pass through the cable, corrupting your data and shutting down communication. The Shielding in the wire helps to prevent this energy from getting through and causing adverse effects to the TC-CK1-SBE communication data.

CABLE PREPARATION: Using an 8 conductor, 24 AWG per conductor solid or stranded cable, the cable jacket should be stripped as shown in Figure 1 and then inserted through the cable fitting and the plug housing assembly.



Conductors should be untwisted and aligned side by side for a T568B connector. Refer to Figure 2 to determine the proper alignment of the cable conductors.



The conductor wire ends should be trimmed as shown in Figure 3. Untwist as little of the cable as possible. Be careful not to remove the insulation of individual conductors!

INTER**SECTO** 

After inserting the wires into the appropriate positions of the load bar, slide the cable to a point where the cable jacket hits the notch of the load bar. Trim the remaining wire ends to approximately 5mm length as shown in Figure 4. Retract the cable, leaving approximately 1mm of wire tips as shown in Figure 5.



Insert the wired load bar into the RJ45 plug all the way until the wire tips are sealed against the inside wall of the plug housing (Figure 6).

**IMPORTANT –** No wires should be exposed when the plug is fully in place.



Figure 6

Terminate the cable and the RJ45 plug with a modular plug termination tool similar to the one shown in Figure 7.



Depress the locking tab of the RJ45 plug and align it with the wide slot of the plug housing shown in Figure 8 Detail A. Gently pull the cable until the plug is fully seated. Hold the plug in position and rotate cable fitting until tightened to a torque of 3.4 Nm (30 Ib-in) as shown in Figure 8 Detail B.





Figure 8

Once the quick connector assembly is completed attach the cable to the sensor. Remove the protective cover from the sensor receptacle assembly (Figure 9) by gently rotating the cover counter clockwise. Gently insert the assembled plug (Bayonet) into the jack adaptor of the RJ45 receptacle, align the 3 keys of the bayonet coupling ring with the 3 channels of the receptacle, and rotate the bayonet coupling ring until the 3 keys "click" into the bayonet channels (Figure 10).





INTERFACE CARD INSTALLATION:

Route the other end of the Ethernet cable to your cabinet. Connect the Ethernet connector to the end of the cable. Configure the Ethernet connector (RJ45 plug) for a "Straight thru" connection.

	EIA/TIA 568B
	WIRING STANDARD
PIN	WIRE COLOR
1	White w/ Orange Stripe
2	Orange
3	White w/ Green Stripe
4	Blue
5	White w/ Blue Stripe
6	Green
7	White w/ Brown Stripe
8	Brown
-	E'



EIA/TIA 568B STANDARD



Figure 11

NOTE: Your colors may be different than what is shown.

After completing the Ethernet cable, plug the interface card into your traffic cabinet.

- If using the 4 output interface card, ensure that it is plugged into the even slot.
- If using the 2 output interface card, it can be plugged into any slot.

Either card uses 12-24 Volts supplied by the rack in the cabinet.



CAUTION: Power supply must be capable of supplying 1 amp of current to each TCIB card.

Once the interface card is properly installed, plug the Ethernet cable from the sensor into the setup port of the card. Initially the LEDS will light and stay on when the Ethernet cable is plugged into the setup port. This is normal and indicates that the unit has not been completely setup. Once a valid connection is established the LED will light only when the zone is activated by vehicle detection. The sensor is now ready to program.



#### SOFTWARE SETUP:

Programming of the INTERSECTOR is performed by connecting the sensor to a computer. Connect a Laptop/PC to the Laptop Ethernet port.



WARNING: The INTERSECTOR can only be programmed if the Ethernet cable is plugged into the setup port on the interface card. Please ensure proper connection before proceeding further.



When the sensor is connected to the setup port, it will receive power from the interface card.

Set your computer for a Dedicated IP Address:

- 1. Select the START button at the lower left of the computer screen.
- 2. Select SETTINGS and open CONTROL PANEL.
- Select NETWORK AND DIAL UP CONNECTIONS (NETWORK AND SHARING CENTER for Vista, NETWORK AND SHARING for Windows 7).
   3b. For Vista, choose MANAGE NETWORK CONNECTION. For Windows 7, select CHANGE ADAPTER SETTINGS.



ou can get IP settings assigned is capability. Otherwise, you ne e appropriate IP settings.					
Obtain an IP address autor	matically				
C Use the following IP addre	ss:				
IP address:		190		10	10
Subnet mask:	Г	<i>.</i>	- 22	48	1
Default gateway:		- 72	122	- 19 19	1
Obtain DNS server addres	s automatic	ally			
Use the following DNS ser	ver addres:	ses:			
Preferred DNS server:			10	18	1
Alternate DNS server:		- 24	(a)	4); (4)	1
				Adva	nced

- 4. Select Local Area Network.
- 5. Click on Internet Protocol TCP/IP (Internet Protocol version 4TCP/IPV4 for Vista or Windows 7).
- 6. Select Properties.



	d automatically if your network supports sed to ask your network administrator for
C Obtain an IP address auto	matically
Use the following IP addre	4K
IP address:	192.168.0.99
Subnet mask:	255.255.255.0
Default gateway.	
C Obtain DNG server addes	
Use the following DNS ser	ver addresses:
Preferred DNS server:	1 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14
Alternate DNS server:	
	Advanced.

- 7. Select Use the following IP address.
- 8. For IP address, enter the following: 192.168.0.99
- 9. For Subnet Mask enter the following: 255.255.255.0 (NOTE: When you are finished installing the INTERSECTOR, it will be necessary to return to Properties and select "Obtain an IP address automatically" to restore default port settings.)

Click OK to save changes and close the network window.



## WARNING: DO NOT REFRESH

your internet browser after entering IP Address. Always enter the IP Address manually.

Programming The INTERSECTOR:

On your computer, open an Internet browser (Internet Explorer version 7 or greater is preferred). In the Address bar of the internet browser type <u>HTTP://192.168.0.100</u>. This should connect the computer to the sensor. You will be prompted for a password. The default password is "password". After the password is accepted the start page for sensor setup will be displayed.

If you wish to change DELAY BEFORE MAX or OZP/MAX TIME from the default settings, choose SETUP. Default time for DELAY BEFORE MAX is 120 seconds. Default time for OZP/MAX Time is NULL (No value).

Enter the desired value (0 - 960 seconds) in the window next to DELAY BEFORE MAX. Click on DELAY BEFORE MAX time to store the RF Channel Value. Repeat this process for OZP/MAX TIME. Click BACK to exit the Setup menu.

To assign an RF Channel to the INTERSECTOR, enter a number 1-7, then click "Set RF Channel". It is recommended that a separate channel number be assigned to each sensor at an intersection.





Select ZONE SETTING. This will open the PROGRAMMING SCREEN for the INTERSECTOR. (Note: You can enter dimensions in either FEET or METER by changing the Unit Select Box. The values will automatically correct when switching between FEET or METER.)

Upon entering the PROGRAMMING SCREEN you will see the TARGET SETUP TABLE, DATA DISPLAY, and VEHICLE TABLE.

Set	ove Data	1						1	Den II	lows	Mai	Bet	1		 		
linge	(Senge)	Table							ð. 1		t	19	60				
2.000	Y (Set.)	X (Set )		Y Behad (Sec)	Wath of Zone User 1	Delay Tater	Tree .		Vehicle Cent	244	-	Zine Deurspeum					
	190.8	-178	25.0	20.0	29.0	10.8	100 J	1	0		0		34	08			
	190.6	4.0	21.1	21.4	12.0	10.5	1.8 )	4	12	0	0		- 11				
	180.8	0.0	20.0	35.6	12.0	0.0	1.0 1	0	1				140	(A)			
4	180.0	0.0	23.1	21.4	12.8	2.8	1.8. 3	8	1		0		1.00				
	190.0	0.0	25.4	21.4	12.0	11	1.0	0									
6	180.0	0.0	21.1	21.0	12.0	0.0	1.0	10	0	10.			47	oe.			
2	180.6	Des.	820.4	214	12.0	815	118 13		1 m								
l Set		(0.0	201	21.4		11	1.0	-	Ē	C .	0		24	ON .			
See 1	nine Ora Nationa (1. w	(D)	201	214 Y 8	12.0 a 04%	Angle	1.0		Auto De	eet (2		Sietgen	34				
See 1	ntere () v New () v	(D)	X 0 Const	214 Y 8	12.0 a 04%	Angle	1.0		Auto De	eet (2		Configure		08			
See 1	nine Ora Nationa (1. w	(D)	X 0 Const	214 Y 8	12.0 a 04%	Angle	1.0		Auto De	eet (2			30	08			
See 1	eran Dis elect (1 w regins Are Datput	201 - 1	X 0 Const	214 Y 8	12.0 a 04%	Angle	1.0		Auto De	eet (2			30	os			
See 1 See 1 Data	enen Der elect (1. w huter Am Detpet Re Table	D I V	211 X (i Const i dd ar og	210 Y 8 w (0)	120 ] or Office Inter Website	E E Angle		2	Anto De Tech Ma	nde 1			30	os			
See 1 See 1 Data	elan Da elan (1 v taite An Datpat	anter	211 X () V Court I dd ar og	210 Y (0 We (0) W (1) M	(22 ] or Office Inter Website A provident	E E Angle	1.0	2 2 ) (Che	Anto De Tech Ma	nde 1			30	os			
See 1 See 1 Data	enen Der elect (1. w huter Am Detpet Re Table	alatan Di Vara	200 X (0 Const Con	23 0 Y (5 em ) (0 e (3))	C20 a Offer the West	E E Angle		2 2 1) Class 0.0	Anto De Tech Ma	nde 1			30	08 08			
See 1	enen Der elect (1. w huter Am Detpet Re Table	and	X (0 Const cleft or op 0.0	23 0 Y (5 ene ) (0 e (3) (3)	(22 ] = Offer no: West back when back when bac	E E Angle		2 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2	Anto De Tech Ma	nde 1			30	08 08		_	
See 1 See 1 Data	enen Der elect (1. w huter Am Detpet Re Table		200 X (0 Constant class option 0.0 0.0	Ya Ya Wa Gur	12.0 a Offer an Veter A product	E E Angle		2 2 1) Clas 0.0 0.0 0.0	Anto De Tech Ma	nde 1			30	08 08		_	
See 1 See 1 Data	enen Der elect (1. w huter Am Detpet Re Table		X (0 Const cleft or op 0.0	23 0 Y (2) # (2) # (2) h	(22 ] = Offer no: West back when back when bac	E E Angle		2 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2	Anto De Tech Ma	nde 1			50   28   128   128   128	08 08			

You will see vehicles passing through the DATA DISPLAY (right half of screen). If you do not, confirm the alignment of the sensor. To track the pattern of the vehicles being displayed, turn on BREAD CRUMBS.



Refer to your completed INTERSECTOR Worksheet and enter the Offset Angle or dimensions to the center of the stop bar zone. Click on SET SENSOR ORIENTATION to save the value. This should correctly align the vehicles passing through the stop bar area on the graphics portion of the screen (right side).

Turn on BREAD CRUMBS by clicking the box in the upper right portion of the screen. Use the Bread Crumb graphics to ensure that the sensor is aligned properly. If the BREAD CRUMBS for the left or right turn lane are ending early, adjust the sensor side to side until the desired tracking is displayed. If the BREAD CRUMBS for the straight lanes are ending early or extending too far, adjust the tip angle up or down slightly. Fine tune the offset angle so that the path of vehicles aligns with the vertical lines displayed. Note that these lines do not represent lanes, but are merely to be used for alignment purposes. If you are working with a curved road, look for alignment in the stop bar area only.

#### SETTING UP DETECTION ZONES:

If this is your first time setting up an INTERSECTOR, you can explore its capabilities in SIMULATION MODE. Please refer to Appendix A for more information.

The best way to set up detection zones is to base your zones off of real traffic. When a car is in a desired zone, click the Stop button.

Next, refer to the VEHICLE TABLE and locate the desired ID to copy. The vehicle number should match what you see in the DATA DISPLAY.

On the Zone Select line of the webpage, choose the zone that you want to set up (Zone 1 is the default). Then choose the ID that you selected in the previous step. Note that this is the ID number, not the Vehicle number. Then click COPY DATA, and the zone should appear in the graphics portion of the screen. A stop bar graphic will appear at the front of Zone 1.

Now it is time to fine tune the zone. To extend the zone farther forward, adjust Y Front entry (10 feet is the default value). To extend the zone farther back, adjust the Y Behind value (80 feet is the default value). To widen or narrow your zone, adjust the Width of Zone entry (12 feet is the default value). If you have adjacent zones, we recommend leaving no gap between them - even a little overlap is OK. To apply DELAY TIME or EXTENSION TIME to a zone, enter values for those entries. Next, choose an output by entering a value for OPTO OUTPUT (0-4). A value of zero will indicate this zone is turned off. No output will be sent for a vehicle detected within this zone. Finally, enter a description for the zone for future reference. Check BIKE ONLY to ignore cars and trucks that may be in the zone.

If you find that you need to move the overall location of a zone, you can move a zone to the left by decreasing the X value (note that X values may be negative in some cases). Increasing the X value will move the zone to the right. Decreasing the Y value will move the zone closer, while increasing it will move the zone farther away.

The new zone will show in yellow except when a vehicle is present. If a vehicle is present in a zone, the color changes to red. When you are satisfied with the location of your zone, click on SET ZONE DATA near the upper left of your screen. At this point, the yellow zone will turn green, indicating that it is saved to memory. You will also observe traffic again in the DATA DISPLAY and in the VEHICLE TABLE.

Repeat the previous steps as necessary to create additional zones.

We recommend observing traffic for a short while to observe that all zones are operating as intended. BREAD CRUMBS may be beneficial for making these observations. Make any adjustments to the dimensions of the zones if necessary. Any zones being altered will turn back to yellow instead of green when no vehicle is present. Click SET ZONE DATA to save your changes.

To save your setup to file, follow these steps:

- Click on SET ZONE DATA to store your setup in the INTERSECTOR
- Select FAVORITES on the Toolbar at the top of your internet browser.
- Select ADD TO FAVORITES, name the setup (possibly the direction of traffic at this intersection such as Westbound), and create a new folder to store this favorite in, such as the intersection name (Main and 1st street).
- You can also copy the website link from the address bar and paste it to a Word document. This Word document can then be saved as a file. We recommend naming the file with the intersection and direction name (MainFirstWestbound.doc).

When you are satisfied with your settings and ready to enter operational mode, click on BACK at the upper left. Please note that if you haven't clicked SET ZONE DATA, one or more of your changes may not be saved.

### ADJUSTMENTS

Back																		
Set	one Data	1.91	T Test	Site				1.0	Days	lours	Ma	Sec		TI.		 1	 1	
Ire	t Setup	Table							12 1	4	28	34	6008				1	
		V (fere)	Y Front (feet )	Y Behind (feet)	Width of Zone (feet )	Delay Time	Extension Time	Opto Output	Vehicle Count	Bike	Pulse	Zone Description	1					
1	120.0	-62.0	10.0	30.0	18.0	0.0	0.0	1	15535	0	D	Right to	540th					
2	120.0	-43.0	10.0	30.0	18.0	0.0	0.0	2	14639			Dtraight					£	
3	120.0	25.0	10.0	30.0	18.0	0.0	0.0	3	14639			Lette	4808				È.	
4	120.0	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	0	14638		0		+OVER				1	
5	400.0	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	à	14638				t.				ť.	
6	450.0	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	0	14637	0	0		4208				15	
7	0.000	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	0	14538	0	D						1	
	550.0 Iensor Orie	-35.0 entation	20.0 X 0	20.0 Y (0	or Offic	0.0 et Angle	0.0	0	14639				360m					
Zoset Set I Skop	iensor Orie elect 1 v	-35.0 entation	20.0 X 0 Copy 1	Y 0 Dete C	or Offic	0.0 et Angle	0.0	0 U	d hannessee	Net 2	-	Configure ad Crumbs						
Set I Slop Opto	ISSO 0 Iensor Orie elect 1 ~	aso material DIV	20.0 X 0 Copy 1	Y 0 Dete C	or Offic	0.0 et Angle	0.0	0 U	nit Select	Net 2	-		360m 300m					
Set I Set I Slop Opto	ienaar Orie elect 1 v history An Output	anation : D 1 v Move	20.0 X 0 Copy 1	20.0 Y 0 Dete C the 265	or Offic	a Count	0.0	0 U E 5	14639 nit Select Auto De Tech Mo	Noot Sect 2	-		360m 300m 240m					
Set I Set I Stop Opto	sso o ensor Orie elect 1 v Nutray Are Output	antation : D 1 v Move amber	20.0 X 0 Casy left or rep 2 y position 0.0	200 Y 0 Dets C the 265	or Office	a Count	-1	0 U 5 () Cla 0.0	14639 nit Select Auto De Tech Mo	Noot Sect 2	-		3608 3008 2408 1808					
Set Set Sey Opto Vehis ID	sso o ensor Orie elect 1 v Nutray Are Output	antation : ID 1 v Move amber	20.0 X 0 Casy left or rep 2 y position 0.0	200 Y 0 Data C the 265	roo or Offse ear Vehica x position 0.0 0.0	a Count	-1 -1 [upreed (mp8 [0]	0 U 5 0.0 0.0	14639 nit Select Auto De Tech Mo	Noot Sect 2	-		360m 300m 240m		8			
Set Set Sey Opto Vehis ID	sso o ensor Orie elect 1 v Nutray Are Output	anber b	20.0 X [0 Copy] Left or rap 3 y position 0.0 0.0	20.0 Y 0 Data C the 265	TO O	a Count	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 U 5 0.0 0.0 0.0	14639 nit Select Auto De Tech Mo	Noot Sect 2	-		3608 3008 2408 1808		2			
Set I Set I Slop Opto	sso o ensor Orie elect 1 v Nutray Are Output	anber p	20.0 X 0 Casy left or rep 2 y position 0.0	20.0 Y 0 Data C the 265	roo or Offse ear Vehica x position 0.0 0.0	a Count	-1 -1 [upreed (mp8 [0]	0 U 5 0.0 0.0	14639 nit Select Auto De Tech Mo	Noot Sect 2	-		3608 3008 2408 1808					

Observe the location that the zone is shown on the DATA DISPLAY. If the zone needs to be moved or resized, use the following guidelines:

- To move the zone left, The X coordinate value should be decreased. If necessary, the value can be negative. (Example: -38.00)
- To move the zone right, the X coordinate value should be increased.
- To move the zone farther away (up on the screen), the Y coordinate value should be increased.
- To move the zone closer (down on the screen), the Y coordinate value should be decreased.
- To make the zone wider or narrower, increase or decrease the value for Width of Zone.
- Increasing or decreasing the values for Y Front or Y Behind will lengthen or make the zone shallower.

NOTE: For instructions on saving and loading data using 1.9U software, please refer to the Addendum at the end of this manual

How to save the data acquired per approach for an intersection.

- First click on SET ZONE DATA. This saves all of the data for that approach of the INTERSECTOR that you are working with to the address bar at the top of your browser.
- From the 'add to favorite' click on new folder. Name the folder to reflect the specific Intersection.
- From the 'add to favorite' click on the folder that you just made. In the box titled MS Sedco, type in the approach name of the direction and save. (Example: South bound 16th and Main)
- If you need to re-install a setup for that approach, go to your Favorites. Select the desired folder and locate the correct approach. Opening this file will automatically load the setup information into the INTERSECTOR.

#### OPERATIONAL MODE:

Unplug the Laptop Ethernet cable from the Laptop Ethernet Port. Move the Sensor Ethernet cable to the Operational Ethernet port. The green LED indicating connection and the yellow LED indicating data should be on. The 2 or 4 LED for outputs will turn off when a valid connection has been established to the sensor. Confirm operation of each zone. Ensure that the appropriate LED light up when detection occurs.

Software versions 1.9S and newer include features that were not available in earlier versions. These include:

- Ability to configure up to 8 outputs using two (2) TCIB connected as Primary and Secondary units.
- Ability to remove zones from crosswalk area to avoid pedestrian detection.
- Ability to enable Collision Avoidance feature for zones in potentially dangerous areas.
- Ability to detect vehicles traveling in the wrong direction through zones.

#### DEFINITIONS:

#### OUTPUT UPGRADE:

Allows the configuration of up to 8 outputs using both a Primary and Secondary TCIB.

#### TAIL EXTENSIONS:

Allows the end user to remove the zone from the crosswalk to avoid pedestrian detection that might cause a false call.

#### WRONG WAY DETECTION (DEPARTING TRAFFIC DETECTION):

Enables the detection of vehicles traveling in the wrong direction in a lane, or entering on/off ramps. This option can be also used to detect traffic in departing lanes.

#### COLLISION AVOIDANCE/ SPEED BINS:

The Collision Avoidance feature, based on a new direction from the FHWA, allows the user to set up zones with speed values. In the event a vehicle exceeds that speed while in the zone an output is provided to the controller to extend the Collision Avoidance system. These Speed Bins can then be set up to activate an advanced warning system as vehicles are approaching dangerous curves or work zones at excessive speeds.



#### SET-UP INSTRUCTIONS:

#### Eight Output Setup

- 1. Equipment needed:
  - a. Two TCIB cards
  - b. HyperTerminal (this can be downloaded from our website or elsewhere on the Internet)
  - c. One RS232 Dongle (this connects the laptop to the TCIB)
  - d. A powered rack
  - e. A laptop or desktop computer
  - f. One RS232 jumper cable male to male null modem type
- 2. HyperTerminal settings are 115, 200, 8, N, 1.
- 3. Connect the RS232 Dongle.
- 4. Engage HyperTerminal.
- 5. Power on the Rack and the TCIB boards.
- 6. HyperTerminal will display messages; one will show the software version of the TCIB. Software version must be 1.3S or higher to enable new features.
- 7. Select Type. Enter Primary or Secondary and the TCIB will begin programming. Once finished, mark each card as either a Primary or Secondary. Note: All TCIB are shipped as Primary.
- 8. Connect the Primary TCIB to Secondary TCIB with the RS232 jumper cable provided.
- 9. Power the INTERSECTOR that will be using the 8-Output system.
- 10. At the main screen, confirm the software version of the INTERSECTOR is 1.9S or higher, to enable the new feature.
- 11. Select Zone Settings.
- 12. Configure zones 1-8.

iot Zo	ne Data	1.9	T Test	Site				711	Days H	ours	Min	Sec	[		 	 	1	
troet	Setup	Table						=0 g	12 1	4	39	40	600m				1	
1		X (feet )	Y Front (feet )	Y Behind (feet )	Width of Zone (feet )	Delay Time	Extension	Opto Output	Vehicle Count	Bike	Pulse	Zone Description	540				1	
	120.0	-62.0	10.0	30.0	18.0	0.0	0.0	1	15535			Right to	3400				<u>i</u>	
	120.0	-43.0	10.0	30.0	18.0	0.0	0.0	2	14639			Straight	1				1	
	120.0	-25.0	10.0	30.0	18.0	0.0	0.0	3	14639			Left to	480m				1	
	200.0	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	4	14638			Wrong We	1				1	
	400.0	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	5	14638			Early 1	1				1	
	450.0	1000	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	6	14637	1 - 1 -	100							
	400.0	-35.0	1150.0	120.0	10.0	0.0	0.0	10	14037	<u> </u>		Early 2	420ft					
-0	500.0	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	7	14638			Early 2 Early 3	420 <del>ft</del>	5			1	
iet Se	500 0 550 0 ansor Ork	-35.0 -35.0	20.0 20.0 X 0	20.0 20.0 Y 0	70.0 70.0 or Offse	0.0 0.0 et Angle	0.0	8	14638 14639			Early 3 1st Det	420ft 360ft				-	
Set Set Set Set Di	500 0 550 0 ansor Orie	-35.0 -35.0 entation	20.0 20.0	20.0 20.0 Y 0 Data C	70.0 70.0 or Offse	0.0 0.0 et Angle	0.0	7 8 U	14638 14639 nit Select Auto Det	feet lect 2	0	Early 3 Tist Det Configure						
Set Set Set Di Stop	500 0 550 0 ansor Orie	-35.0 -35.0 entation	20.0 20.0 X 0 Copy	20.0 20.0 Y 0 Data C	70.0 70.0 or Offse	0.0 0.0 et Angle	0.0	7 8 U	14638 14639 nit Select	feet lect 2	0	Early 3 1st Det	360ft					
Set Se Set D Set D	500.0 550.0 ensor Ork elect 1 v splay Are	-35 0 -35 0 entation 	20.0 20.0 X 0 Copy	20.0 20.0 Y 0 Data C	70.0 70.0 or Offse	0.0 0.0 et Angle	0.0	7 8 U	14638 14639 nit Select Auto Det	feet lect 2	0	Early 3 Tist Det Configure	360m 300m					
Set Set Set Di Stop pto C	500.0 550.0 elect 1 v splay Are Dutput	-35 0 -35 0 entation 	20.0 20.0 X 0 Copy	20.0 20.0 Y 0 Data C that 265	70.0 70.0 or Offse	0 0 0 0 et Angle e Count	0.0	7 8 0 5	14638 14639 nit Select Auto Det	feet tect 2 de	0	Early 3 Tist Det Configure	360ñ 300ñ 240ñ					
Set Se meSe Set D Stop pto (	500.0 550.0 ensor Orie elect 1 ~ splay Are Dutput	-35 0 -35 0 entation P ID 1 en Move e umber	20.0 20.0 X 0 Copy e left or rig	20.0 20.0 Y 0 Data C tht 265	a position 0.0	0 0 0 0 et Angle e Count	-1	7 8 U S h) Cia 9.0	14638 14639 nit Select Auto Det	feet tect 2 de	0	Early 3 Tist Det Configure	360ft 300ft 240ft 150ft	8				
iet Si neSe iet D itop pto (	500.0 550.0 ensor Orie elect 1 ~ splay Are Dutput	entation ID 1 ID 1 umber	20.0 20.0 X 0 Copy e left or rig y position 0.0 0.0	200 200 Y 0 Data C pht 265	70.0 70.0 or Offse leer Vehick	0 0 0 0 et Angle e Count	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	7 7 8 0 0 0 0.0	14638 14639 nit Select Auto Det	feet tect 2 de	0	Early 3 Tist Det Configure	360ñ 300ñ 240ñ					
Set Se meSe Set D Stop pto (	500.0 550.0 ensor Orie elect 1 ~ splay Are Dutput	entation ID 1 - entation ID 1 - entation	200 200 X 0 Copy e left or rig 0.0 0.0	200 200 Y 0 Data C tht 265	70.0 70.0 or Offse leer Vehick	0 0 0 0 et Angle e Count	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	7 7 8 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	14638 14639 nit Select Auto Det	feet tect 2 de	0	Early 3 Tist Det Configure	360ft 300ft 240ft 150ft	8				
Set Se oneSet Set D Stop pto (	500.0 550.0 ensor Orie elect 1 ~ splay Are Dutput	-35 0 -35 0 entation TD 1 - monocology umber	20.0 20.0 X 0 Copy e left or rig y position 0.0 0.0	200 200 Y 0 Data C tht 265	70.0 70.0 or Offse leer Vehick	0 0 0 0 et Angle e Count	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	7 7 8 0 0 0 0.0	14638 14639 nit Select Auto Det	feet tect 2 de	0	Early 3 Tist Det Configure	360ft 300ft 240ft 150ft					

Tail Extensions Setup

- 1. Equipment needed: None
- 2. Once the INTERSECTOR is in Setup Mode, proceed to Zone Settings. Set up the zones where extension is needed (generally the right turn and stop bar lanes).
- 3. Start the configure format by selecting Configure.
- 4. While in configure, check the Extend box for each required zone.
- 5. Once all zones needing extension are selected, click on Set Configure.
- 6. Watch the zones to verify proper operation.
- 7. Return to Operational Mode.

Set Z	ne Data	1.9	T Test	Site				11	Days H	ours	Min	Sec	[*****	 	MS-Se	ico lettera	ector Serve	- Beterre	et Explorer	area de	60
arpe	Setup T	able						1	12 1	6	28	34	6008	1	http:/	192.568.0	100 corrlip	Meri			_
	Y (feet )		Y Front (feet )	Y Behind (feet)	Width of Zone (feet)	Delay Time	Extension	Opto Output	Vehicle Count	Bike	Puls	Zone Description			Set co	contract of	Close	-	Wrong		
	120.0	-27.0	0.0	60.0	12.0	0.0	10	1	15535	0	0	Right to	5408		Zone	mph)	< Speed (mph)	Exten	Way		
-	120.0	-15.0	0.0	60.0	12.0	0.0	1.0	2	14662	1	10	Straight			1	0	200.0	2			
-	Longo Contract	-3.0	0.0	60.0	12.0	0.0	1.0	2	14639		H	Left	10000		2	0	200.0	8			
-		-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	0	17283	0	0	Wiong Wa	4508		3	10	200.0	8	10		
-		-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	00	0	17205	0	H	Early 1			4	0	200.0				
-	the second s	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	00	0	17285	H	-	Early 2	4208		5	0	200.0				
-	500.0	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	0	17202			Early 3	4208		6	1.0	200.0				
-		-	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	0	17286		H	Tst Det	10		7	1.0	200.0	0	0		
_	\$50.0	-35.0	20.0	20.0	100	100	100	-	111200	100	-	1910/01	3606		8	1.0	200.0				
Set 5	insor Orie			Y 0	or Office		10.0	9			0	121-545	3608		8	0	200.0				
	msor One	ntation	X [0	Y [0	or Offse	n Angle	10.0	U	nit Select	feet		Configure			8	0	200.0				
one5	insor Orie lect 1 ♥	nation ]	X 0	Y 0 Data C	-	n Angle	10.0		nat Select		~		360 <del>0</del>		8	10	200.0		0		
one5	insor Orie lect 1 ♥	nation ]	X [0	Y 0 Data C	or Offse	n Angle	10.0				~				8	10	200.0				
Set D	insor Orie lect 1 ♥ splay Area	nation ]	X 0	Y 0 Data C	or Offse	n Angle	10.0	5	nit Select	lect 2	~		3004		8	10	200.0				
one S Set D Start	insor Orie lect 1 ♥ splay Area	nation ]	X 0	Y 0 Data C	or Offse	n Angle	10.0	5	nit Select	lect 2	~	Configure			8	10	200.0				
one S Set D Start	inser One dect [1 🗸 splay Area	nation ]	X 0	Y 0 Data C	or Offse	n Angle	10.0	5	nit Select	lect 2	~	Configure	3004		8 [	10	200.0				
Set D Set D Start pto	inser One Sect [1 🛩 splay Area Jutput	nation ]	X 0	Y 0 Data C	or Offse	n Angle	1	5	nit Select	lect 2	~	Configure	3004		8	10	200.0				
one5 Set D Start pto	inser Orie dect 1 v nplay Aver Dutput e Table	nation ]: ID [1_5	X 0 Copyl left or rig	Y 0 Data C data 227	or Offse	e Count	0	s	nat Select Auto De Tech Me	de	~	Configure	300 <del>0</del>		8	10	200.0				
one5 Set D Start pto Chic D	insor Orie lect 1 v nplay Aver Dutput e Table fucle Nu	nation ]: ID [ _ v ] Move	X 0 Copy Copy I left or rig	Y 0 Data C the 227	or Offse lear Vehick	e Count	0	5 ) [Ch	nit Select Auto Der Tech Mo	de	~	Configure	300 <del>0</del>		8	1.0	200.0				
one5 Set D Start pto D V D V	insor Orie lect 1 v nplay Aver Dutput e Table fucle Nu	nation : ID 1 S Move	X 0 Copy Copy : left or rig y position 114.8	Y 0 Data C the 227	or Offie her Vehick	e Count	0	5 5) Cla [14)	nit Select Auto Der Tech Mo	de	~	Configure	300 <del>0</del>		8	10	200.0				
ehic ove5 set D start pto V 14 0	insor Orie lect 1 v nplay Aver Dutput e Table fucle Nu	ntation : ID 1 v Move	X 0 Copy Copy I left or rig	Y 0 Data C ghr 227	or Offse lear Vehick	e Count	0	5 ) [Ch	nit Select Auto Der Tech Mo	de	~	Configure	3008 2408			10	200.0				
oneS Set D Start pto D V D V D V 0 0	insor Orie lect 1 v nplay Aver Dutput e Table fucle Nu	nber	X 0 Capy 1 left or rig y position 114.8 0.0	Y 0 Data C ghr 227	or Offier	e Count	0	5) Cla 14. 0.0	nit Select Auto Der Tech Mo	de	~	Configure	3008 2408			1.0	200.0				
Set D Start Opto	insor Orie lect 1 v nplay Aver Dutput e Table fucle Nu	nation ] : ID [1 S	X 0 Copy 1 left or rig y position 114.8 0.0 0.0	Y 0 Data C the 227	or Offie hear Vehick	e Count	0 [speed (mp) ]31.1 [0 [0	5) Cla 14. 0.0 0.0	nit Select Auto Der Tech Mo	de	~	Configure	300# 240# 180# 120#		10						

Collision Avoidance and Speed Bin Setup

- 1. Equipment needed: None
- 2. With the INTERSECTOR in Setup Mode, proceed to Zone Settings. Set up the zones where Collision Avoidance or Speed Bin is needed (generally these will be set behind the stop bar zones).
- 3. Start the configure format by selecting Configure.
- 4. While in configure, enter values for minimum and maximum speeds for each zone being used as a Speed Bin for Collision Avoidance. Once all speed ranges have been set, click on Set Configure.
- 5. Watch the zones to verify proper operation.
- 6. Return to Operational Mode.



#### Collision Avoidance and Speed Bin Setup (continued)

Set 2	one Data	1.9	T Test	Site				11	Days H	lours	Min	Sec	·····	 T. T						
	t Setup 1	Table						- 1	12 1	6	51	43	600ft		Co M	Ledco Inter	sector Serve	i deterne	et Explorer	-
a ge	i beiop i	1 1016	here i	Y	Width	L	L		L	1	_	-	1		8	192.368	0.100/comil-p	hirs/feek	iceidet+st	1000
Zone	Y (feet )	X (feet )	Y Front (feet )	Behind (fert)	of Zone (feet )	Delay Time	Extension Time	Opto Output	Vehicle Count	Bike	Puise	Description	1 540 <del>0</del>		Se	config	Close	1		
1	120.0	-15.0	5.0	60.0	12.0	0.0	1.0	1	15552		0	Str 1	1		Zee	> Speed	< Speed	Extend	Wrong	1
2	180.0	-15.0	5.0	60.0	12.0	0.0	1.0	2	14683			Str 2	£			(mph)	(mph)	L. SIGIN	Way	1:
3	240.0	-15.0	5.0	60.0	12.0	0.0	1.0	3	14644			Str 3	480m		1	30.0	200.0			ł
4	300.0	-15.0	5.0	60.0	12.0	0.0	0.0	4	17306			Str 4	1		2	35.0	200.0			1
5	360.0	-27.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	Ó	17285				1		2	40.0	200.0			
5	450.0	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	0	17282		0		420ft		4	45.0	200.0			
1	500.0	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	0	17281				Townson and		12	0.0	200.0	<u> </u>		
Set 5	500.0 550.0 Iensor Ore	-35.0	20.0	20.0 20.0 Y 0	70.0 70.0 or Office	0.0	0.0	0	17286				360n	• 38	5 6 7 8	00	200.0 200.0 200.0 200.0			
LoneS	550 0 iensor Ore elect 1 ∨	-35 0 entation	20.0	20.0 Y 0	70.0 or Office	0.0 t Angle	0.0	0 U	Constanting of the	feet	•	Configure	3608 3008	•38	5 6 7 8	0.0	200.0 200.0			
Set C	isto 0 iensor Ore elect 1 v	-35 0 entation	20.0 X 0 Copy D	20.0 Y 0	70.0 or Office	0.0 t Angle	0.0	0 U	17286	Seef		Configure	1	•38	5 6 7 8	0.0	200.0 200.0			
oneS Set C Start Opto	550 0 iensor Ore elect 1 ~ Daplay Are	350 entation ID 1 •	20.0 X 0 Copy D	20.0 Y 0	70.0 or Office	0.0 t Angle	0.0	0 U	17286 nit Select Auto De	Seef			1 	•38	5 6 7 8	0.0	200.0 200.0			
Set C Start Opto	isenaor Ors elect 1 v Daplay Are Output	350 entation PID 1 *	20.0 X 0 Copy D	200 Y 0 ets C) H 227	70.0 or Office	0 0 t Angle [ t Count	0.0	0 U E	17286 nit Select Auto De	tect 20			300 <del>0</del> 240 <del>0</del>	•38	5 6 7 8	0.0	200.0 200.0			
oneS Stert D Stert Opto D [V D [V	550 0 elect 1 v haplay Are Output Cle Table chicle No	-35 0 entation P ID 1 • a Move mber	20.0 X 0 Copy C	200 Y 0 tets Ca tet 227	70.0 or Office oar Vehicle x position -16.1	0 0 t Angle [ t Count	0	0 U E 9 144	17256 nit Select Auto De Tech Mo	tect 20			300A 240A 180 <del>A</del>	•38	5 6 7 8	0.0	200.0 200.0			
oneS Set C Start Opto D [V I [3] 2 [0]	550 0 elect 1 v haplay Are Output Cle Table chicle No	-35 0 entation P ID 1 *	X 0 Copy C e left or right y position 370.3 0.0	2000 Y 0 eta Ci ta 227	20.0 or Office oar Vehicle x position -16.1 0.0	0 0 t Angle [ t Count	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 U 5 144 0.0	17256 nit Select Auto De Tech Mo	tect 20			300 <del>0</del> 240 <del>0</del>	• 38	5 6 7 8	0.0	200.0 200.0			
oneS Set C Start Opto D [V I [3] 2 [0] 3 [0]	550 0 elect 1 v haplay Are Output Cle Table chicle No	-35 0 entation P ID 1 • a Move	200 X 0 Copy C e left or rigit y position 370.3 0.0 0.0	2000 Y 0 ets C at 227	To 0 or Office car Vehicle x position -16.1 0.0	0 0 t Angle [ t Count	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 U E 3 0.0 0.0	17256 nit Select Auto De Tech Mo	tect 20			300A 240A 180 <del>A</del>	• 38	5 6 7 8	0.0	200.0 200.0			
Set C Start Opto	550 0 elect 1 v haplay Are Output Cle Table chicle No	35.0 estation PID 1 3 mber	X 0 Copy C e left or right y position 370.3 0.0	200 0 Y 0 inta C) in 227	20.0 or Office oar Vehicle x position -16.1 0.0	0 0 t Angle [ t Count	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 U 5 144 0.0	17256 nit Select Auto De Tech Mo	tect 20			300ft 240ft 150ft 120ft			00	200.0			

Wrong Way Detection Setup

- 1. Equipment needed: None
- 2. With the INTERSECTOR in Setup Mode, proceed to Zones Settings. Set up the zones where Wrong Way Detection is needed (it is recommended they be located behind the stop bar zones).
- 3. Start the configure format by selecting Configure.
- 4. While in configure, select Wrong Way Detection for each zone needing this feature, click on Set Configure
- 5. Watch the zones to verify proper operation. This feature may be difficult to confirm. Use extreme caution if using a test vehicle.
- 6. Return to Operational Mode.

ack												×			CO MS	Sedice livier	lector Serve	r - Johan	et Explorer	100	0
aca.								-								p://292168.	1.300/samfig	hieffer	ocancilat+23	might sta	upin0.0++
Set Zo	te Data	1.97	Test	Site					Days H	ours	Min	Sec	1	 	Set	config	Close	1			
arget	Setup Ta	able							12 1	6	38	38	600ft			E a a	1	-	Terr 1	1	
onel	(feet)	K (feet )	Y Front	Y Behind	Width of Zone	Delay	Extension		Vehicle	Bake	Puls	Zone	1		Zon	(mph)	< Speed (mph )	Luer	d Wrong Way	1	
			(feet)	(feet )	(feet )	Time	Tume	Output	Count		1	Description	5400		1	0.0	200.0	1			
1	20.0	27.0	0.0	60.0	12.0	0.0	1.0	1	15535			Right th	- Stoll		2	0.0	200.0	8		l	
	20.0	15.0	0.0	60.0	12.0	0.0	1.0	2	14678			Straight	1		3	5.0	200.0	8		1	
1	20.0	-3.0	0.0	60.0	12.0	0.0	1.0	3	14639			Left to	480m		4	0.0	200.0				
12	20.0	15.0	0.0	20.0	40.0	0.0	0.0	4	17300			Wrong We	1		5	0.0	200.0				
4	0.00	35.0	20.0	20.0	20.0	0.0	0.0	0	17285	0		Early 1	1		6	0.0	200.0			1	
	50.0	35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	0	17282		0	Early 2	420ft		7	0.0	200.0			L.	
				M.	1000	0.0	0.0	0	17281	In.	Lo.	Early 3	1.000		8	0.0	200.0				
1	0.00	-35.0	20.0	20.0	70.0	0.0	0.0	U.		L		Early 3									
Set Se	50.0	-35.0 Itation	20.0	20.0 Y 0	or Office	0.0 Angle	0.0	0	17286			1st Def	3600		ľ	- Notes - Land					
Set Se one Sel	50.0	-35.0 tation > ID 1 ~	20.0 Copy C	200 Y 0 Deta C	70.0	0.0 Angle	0.0	0 U	( newspaperson of the local division of the			Construction of the local division of the lo	360 <del>0</del> 300 <del>0</del>								
Set Se one Sel	50.0 naor Orien lect 1 v play Area	-35.0 tation > ID 1 ~	20.0 Copy C	Y 0 Deta C	or Office	0.0 Angle	0.0	0 U	17286 nit Select Auto Det	lect 2	0	1st Def				0		_	1		_
Set Se one Sel Set De Start Opto O	500 naor Dren lect 1 V phy Area supput phy rable	35.0 Itation 3 ID 1 V	20.0 K 0 Copy I left or rig	20.0 Y 0 Deta C ta 227	or Office	0 0 t Angle	0	0 U E	17226 nit Select Auto Det Tech Mo	de	0	Tot Det Cotrigure	           								_
Set Se one Sel Set De Start Opto O	sto o naor Oren lect 1 V play Area sutput	35.0 tation 3 ID 1 ~ Move nber y	20.0 © Copy D left or rig	20.0 Y 0 Deta C da 227	70.0 or Office keer Vehick	0 0 t Angle	0.0 0	0 U 5	17226 nit Select Auto Det Tech Mo	de	0	Tot Det Cotrigure	300ft								_
Set Se one Sel Set Da Start pto O ehicle D Vel	500 naor Dren lect 1 V phy Area supput phy rable	350 Itation 7 ID 1 ~ Move	20.0 © Copy D left or rig position 22.1	20.0 Y 0 Dets C da 227	20.0 er Offie ker Vehick	0 0 t Angle	0 0 0	0 U 5 144	17226 nit Select Auto Det Tech Mo	de	0	Tot Det Cotrigure	300ft	1							_
Set Se meSel Set Du Start D Vel So 0	500 naor Dren lect 1 V phy Area supput phy rable	35 0 Itation 7 ID 1 ~ Move	20.0 © Copy D left or rig	200 Y 0 Data C the 227 (feet )	70.0 or Office keer Vehick	0 0 t Angle	0.0	0 U 5 144 0.0	17226 nit Select Auto Det Tech Mo	de	0	Tot Det Cotrigure	300 <del>ft</del> 240ft	1							_
Set Se set Set Set Du Stat pto O Vel 50 0 0	500 naor Dren lect 1 V phy Area supput phy rable	35.0 tation 3 ID 1 ~ Move aber y 0 0	20.0 Copy I left or rig position 22.1 10	200 Y 0 Data C ta 227	20.0 er Offie ker Vehick	0 0 t Angle	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 U 5 144	17226 nit Select Auto Det Tech Mo	de	0	Tot Det Cotrigure	300 <del>ft</del> 240ft								
Set Se one Sel Set Da Start pto O ehicle D Vel	500 naor Dren lect 1 V phy Area supput phy rable	35.0 tation 3 ID 1 ~ Move aber y 0 0 0	20.0 Copy I left or rig position 22.1 10 10	200 Y 0 Data C fut 227 (feet )	20.0 or Office toor Vehicle x position -16.1 0.0 0.0	0 0 t Angle	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 U 5 144 0.0 0.0	17226 nit Select Auto Det Tech Mo	de	0	Tot Det Cotrigure	300ft 240ft 180ft 120ft								

### **CHANGING THE INTERSECTOR IP ADDRESS**

Software for the INTERSECTOR and TCIB has been updated to allow the system to be IP addressable. Any INTERSECTOR units shipped with rev K or later software are IP addressable. Older units that have rev F software must be upgraded to be IP addressable. For instructions on updating software, please contact MS Sedco.



WARNING: If you plan to change IP Addresses on the INTERSECTOR and TCIB for use with a local network, please maintain a record of the new IP Addresses and passwords. If you do not have access to the IP Addresses and passwords it will be necessary to connect to the INTERSECTOR and TCIB to obtain this information.



WARNING: If you are setting up an Ethernet switch or multi-port hub to access the INTERSECTOR it is important to use a modified Ethernet cable between the "Operational" port of the TCIB and the switch or hub. This cable should be modified to ensure voltage is not transmitted to the switch or hub. Ethernet Switch Safe cable is available from MS Sedco. To construct one of the cables it is necessary to disable pins 4, 5, 7, and 8.

To change the IP addresses on the INTERSECTOR or TCIB, it is first necessary to know the current IP addresses. The default IP Addresses are:

Default Addresses:	
INTERSECTOR IP	192.168.0.100
TCIB card	192.168.0.98
TCIB gateway	192.168.0.1
Computer	192.168.0.99
Computer subnet mask	255.255.255.0
Computer Gateway	192.168.0.1

To find out which version of software the INTERSECTOR and TCIB has, follow these instructions:

To verify the software version of the INTERSECTOR:

 Set laptop IP address to 192.168.0.99 in the LAN properties of the TCP/IP as shown on pages 11 and 12 of the INTERSECTOR Installation Instructions. Connect laptop to the TCIB "Laptop" port. Move INTERSECTOR Ethernet cable from "Operational" port to "Setup" port. Access the default web page at address 192.168.0.100. Note that if your sensor has rev K or later software, you will be prompted for a password. The default password is "password". The software version should be shown as v1.9T, where T is the software revision. NOTE: If IP Addresses have previously been changed, it will be necessary to use the new IP addresses to access the INTERSECTOR.





To verify the software version of the TCIB:

- Connect the laptop to TCIB RS232 port. This can be accomplished by using a USB to RS232 adaptor. Using the communications program Hyperterminal, which is supplied with Windows up to version XP, you can connect to the TCIB. If you are using Windows 7 you can obtain a version of Hyperterminal on the internet. For instructions on using Windows 7, please refer to Appendix C at the back of this manual.
- Open Hyperterminal by clicking on "Start" at the bottom right of your screen. Select "Programs" then "Accessories" and then "Communications". Hyperterminal should be listed there.



My Documents CorelDRAW 9		
My Computer MAS 90 Desktop (2)		
My Network Microsoft Places Office Outl		
Recycle Bin Nero Express		
Internet Popplewell Explorer Storage (5)		
Adobe Reader Shortcut to		
Microsoft Update	िक्क Accessones ► 🚰 Communications ► 🚰 HyperTeminal ►	
Documents	Morosoft Office      X     Soft Service     Soft Ser	
d 🕄 Search । ≪ Help game Run	Cullook Express O Windows Media Flayer V	
	<sup>20</sup> Sage MAS 90 Desktop (#) Changing IP Address on t	18 🕲 🔆 🚾 🖥 🐷 - 11116 AM

Once you have opened Hyperterminal you must configure it for use with the TCIB or INTERSECTOR. You can either create a new connection when prompted, or you can select "File" then "Properties". Select the COM port the RS232 is connected to on your laptop and select "Configure". Enter the following settings:





Once you have configured Hyperterminal you can connect to the TCIB by clicking the reset button on the TCIB or powering the TCIB while Hyperterminal is running. If you connect to the TCIB you can see this screen:



The bottom line from the Hyperterminal screen shows the TCIB software as version 1.3S. The screen also shows the IP address for the TCIB. Record this value for use in the next section.

Checking or setting IP Address

To check or set IP addresses you need to use a software program called IP Address Set.exe. This program is available by contacting MS Sedco direct. 00

There are several steps to changing the IP addresses on the INTERSECTOR, TCIB, and laptop. The steps would be:

- Confirm IP addresses in each device. Record these values for later use.
- Set up the TCP/IP on your computer as shown on pages 11 and 12 of this manual.
- Connect to the TCIB via RS232 cable.
- Change TCIB IP address using the IP\_Address\_Set program.
- Connect to the INTERSECTOR via Ethernet cable.
- Use the IP\_Address\_Set program to change INTERSECTOR IP address
- Verify that changes match between INTERSECTOR and TCIB.

Confirm you can access this address by opening the webpage using the new IP address.

To confirm or set the IP address on the TCIB, connect the laptop to the TCIB via RS232. Connect the laptop to the laptop port of the TCIB via Ethernet cable. Connect the INTERSECTOR Ethernet cable to the Setup port of the TCIB. You can also connect to the INTERSECTOR and TCIB via Ethernet switch or hub. The INTERSECTOR should be connected to the TCIB Setup port via Ethernet cable, and the TCIB Operational port should be connected to the Ethernet switch or Hub.



WARNING: Ensure that the TCIB "Operational" port is connected to the Ethernet switch or hub with the cable labeled "Ethernet Switch Safe" or that the cable has been modified to disable voltage lines.



WARNING: If you are setting up an Ethernet switch or multi-port hub to access the INTERSECTOR it is important to use a modified Ethernet cable between the "Operational" port of the TCIB and the switch or hub. This cable should be modified to ensure voltage is not transmitted to the switch or hub. Ethernet Switch Safe cable is available from MS Sedco. To construct one of the cables it is necessary to disable pins 4, 5, 7, and 8.

Open the default webpage (192.168.0.100) and note you are challenged with a password. Run "IP\_Address\_Set.exe". On the INTERSECTOR tab under the Connection Select mark "Internet" since you are connecting via Ethernet cable. Ensure that the correct INTERSECTOR IP Address is shown in the box next to the "Connect Internet" button. Click on the "Connect Internet" button. A message will be displayed to show you are now connected to the INTERSECTOR.

To retrieve a misplaced password:

Select "Read Password". When the password is read, the program will display the message "Read Password Finished".

(C) M5-1	Sedco Inte	rsector Se	ver - Wind	ows Interne	t Explorer	i.															_	8 ×
Ge	) 🗣 🙋	http://192.1	68.0.100/Zo	neSetting.htm	r.											• + ×	Google	ē.				P -
File E	Edit View	Favorites	Tools He	dþ																		
🔶 Fav	orites 🥻	MS-Sedco I	intersector 5	erver									🐴 Home	🔹 🔹 🚮 Feed	ds (3) 🔹 (	📑 Read Mai	l 📑 Print	▼ Page ▼	Safety <del>-</del>	Tools 🗸	🕜 Help	• »
	et Zone Da et Setup T		Test	Interse	ectior	Ver 1.2	IP_Address_9	iet	Y	2 	CIB											<u> </u>
	Y (feet )	X (feet )	Y Front (feet )	Y Behind (feet )	Width Zone (feet )	ſ	Comm Port Sele	3			IP Finisl	hed				25	Seconds	🗆 Brea	id Crumbs			
1	100.00	0.00	20.00	20.00	12.00		C Comm 1 C Comm 2			IP Addre:	ess 192	2 168	0 100								Ī	
2	100 300	12 0.00	20.00	20.00	48		C Comm 3 C Comm 4		ŝ	Subnet Ma	ask 255	5 255	255 0								1	
4	100.00	-12	20.00	20.00	12.00		C Comm 5	_	Gate	way Addre	ess 192	2 168	0 1					-			Į.	
5	100.00	0.00	20.00	20.00	12.00	ſ	Connection Sele	et -		Connect li	nternet	192.16	8.0.100					-			P	
7	100.00	0.00	20.00	20.00	12.00		C RS232		S	et Passwo	nd Re	ead Passw	ord								1	
8	100.00 Set Senso	0.00 or Orientati	00 20.00	20.00	0		Set IP Ad	drass		Read IP A	ddress		Exit		_]						1	
Zone	Select 1 💌	D 1 •	Copy [	Data	Clear				<u>L.</u>	usion Circ		4			-						1	
	Set Display	Area	Move left o	or right 0						to Detect		T	120ft			4 1	2		_		-1	
Stop Opto	Output	-											   60ft							· · · · · · · · ·	1	•
🥂 Stai	rt 🛛 🕜 🄏				膏 ClearPa	a   💽 5	i Micr + 🕷	CK - Hy.	🗀 3	3 Win +			MS-Sed	Clipboa	🛠 Ver 1		Inte 😜 💽				100%	

To confirm TCIB IP address:

Refer back to the IP address from Hyperterminal in the previous section. If you need to confirm IP address again, connect laptop to TCIB via RS232 cable. Run Hyperterminal or use IP\_Address\_Set to access the TCIB. If using IP\_Address\_Set select the TCIB tab. Select the COM port that corresponds to the RS232 cable. Select "Read IP Address". The IP address for the TCIB should be displayed.

To change INTERSECTOR IP Address:

When changing IP Address it is first necessary to determine the new addresses to be used. For an example, we will use the following IP Addresses:

The new addresses we want to change to are:

	5
INTERSECTOR IP	10.230.39.230
TCIB card	10.230.39.231
Gateway	10.230.32.1
Computer	10.230.32.51
Computer subnet mask	255.255.240.0
Gateway	10.230.32.1

INTERSECTOR

To set the IP Address on the INTERSECTOR, connect the laptop to the laptop port of TCIB and the INTERSECTOR to "Setup" port of the TCIB, both via Ethernet cables. You can also connect to the INTERSECTOR via Ethernet switch or hub. The INTERSECTOR should be connected to the TCIB "Setup" port, and the TCIB "Operational" port should be connected to the Ethernet switch or hub.



Run IP\_Address\_Set. You should see the following screen:

Like Wein         Parvorkes         Constraints         Year         Constraints         Constraints         Year         Year         Constraints         Year		• @	http://192.10	5 <b>8.0.100</b> /Zor	neSetting.htm	Ê.							• *• ×	Google	1	8
ack Set Zone Data arget Setup Table 2 for 1/2 20 00 20 00 1200 3 300 0.00 20 00 20 00 1200 3 100 00 20 00 20 00 1200 5 100 00 20 00 1200 5 100 00 00 100 00 100 00 100 00 100 00 100 00	e Edit	t View	Favorites	Tools He	lp											
Set Zone Data       Test Intersection       Ver 1.2 IP_Address_Set         arget Setup Table       Intersector       TOB         Zone Y (feet)       X (feet)       Y Front (feet)       Y Behind (Yet)         1       100.00       0.00       20.00       70.00         2       100       12       20.00       20.00       120.00         3       300       0.00       20.00       120.00         5       100.00       72       20.00       70.00       120.00         6       100.00       20.00       20.00       120.00       20.00       120.00         7       100.00       20.00       20.00       120.00       20.00       120.00         8       100.00       20.00       20.00       120.00       20.00       120.00         6       100.00       20.00       20.00       120.00       20.00       120.00         8       100.00       20.00       20.00       120.00       20.00       120.00         8et Sensor Orientation       x 0       x 0       x 0       x 0       x 0       x 0         set Display Area       Move left or right       Set Exclusion Circle       4       120t       2	Favorit	tes 🏾 🏉	MS-Sedco I	ntersector Se	erver						🟠 Home	▪ 🔊 Feeds (J)	👻 🖃 Read Mai	il 🚌 Print		🔹 Tools 👻 🕢 Help
2 or V (feet)       X (feet)       Y Front (feet)       Y Behind Vidth (feet)       Seconds       #       #       Seconds       #		Zone Da	ita	Test	<mark>Interse</mark>	ectior 🕿	Ver 1.2 IP_Add	ess_5et					<u>_     ×</u>			
Zone       Y (feet)       X (feet)       Y Front (feet)       Width (feet)       Zone (feet)       Zone)       Zone)	arget	Setup Ta	able				Inters	ector	το	IB				-		
Set Sensor Orientation x 0 y 0 Set IP Address Exit	1 7 2 7 3 7 5 7 7 7	100.00 100 300 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00	0.00 12 0.00 -12 0.00 0.00 0.00	(feet) 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00	(feet) 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00	Zone (feet) 12.00 48 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00	C Con C Con C Con C Con C Con C Connecti C Inte	m 1 m 2 m 3 m 4 m 5 on Select – met	Subnet Mas Gateway Addres Connect In	< 255 255 2   ** 192   168 0	55 0 1 100				Bread Crumt	s             
Stop 60ft	oneSel Set	et Senso lect 1 💌 t Display	r Orientatio	on X	0 Y Data	0	Set			e  4	120ft		4 1	2		



Enter the new IP address, Subnet Mask, and Gateway address, then click "Set IP Address".

Ed		Favorites						
avo	rites 🄏	MS-Sedco I	ntersector 5	erver			🏠 Home 🔹 🔝 Fords (7) 👻 🔤 Read Mail 💼 Print 🔹 Rege 🔹 Safety 👻 Tools 🍬 🔞	Help
2								
Se	t Zone Da	ta	8701	Castle	park D	Drive V	ESTBOUND	
	t Setup Ti	able						
n	_	X (feet )	Y Front (feet )	Y Behind	Width of Zone	Delay Time	Ver 1.2 IP_Address_Set	
4				(feet )	(feet)			
-	100.00	0.00	2.00	20.00	12.00	0.00	Comm Port Select-	
	100.00	0.00	2.00	20.00	12.00	0.00	C Comm 1 IP Addeess 10 230 39 230	
ł	100.00	0.00	2.00	20.00	12.00	0.00	C Corm 2 IP Address 10  230  39  230	
ł	100.00	0.00	2.00	20.00	12.00	0.00	C Comm 4 Subnet Mask 255 255 240 0	
	100.00	0.00	2.00	20.00	12.00	0.00	C Comm 5 Gateway Address 10 230 32 1	
i	100.00	0.00	2.00	20.00	12.00	0.00	Connection Select	
i	100.00	0.00	2.00	20.00	12.00	0.00	Connect Internet 1192.168.0.100	
	, 	·					C R5232 Set Password Read Password	
5	Set Senso	r Orientati	on X	0 γ	100 o	r Offset Ar		
Se	elect 1 💌	D1 -	Copy	Data	Clear Ve	hicle Cou		
	et Display		Move left o		-		Set IP Address Exit	
-			Move left (	a ngnt lo				
p								
	Output						60tt	

The next step is to set the IP address for the TCIB via the RS232 cable. With the TCIB connected to the laptop via the RS232, run IP\_Address\_Set. Choose the TCIB tab and select the correct Comm Port. Click "Read IP Address". Change the information in boxes to reflect the new IP address, Subnet Mask, Gateway address, and INTERSECTOR IP address. Click "Set IP Address" and wait until the message "Set IP Address Finished" is displayed.

http://192.168.0.102/ - Windows Internet Esplarer		_[#]
		💽 😝 🗙 🛃 Google 🖉
le Edil. View Pavorites Taols Help		
Favorites 25 http://192.168.0.102/	🚹 Home • 🔂 French (J) •	🔄 Read Mail 🚔 Print + Page + Safety + Tools + 📦 Help +
	Ver 1.2. IP. Address. Set on Serial Port 4	
	Pand Finished           Comm Pot Select         IP Addeess         10         230         39         231           Comn 2         Submet Mask         255         255         240         0           Comn 3         Comn 4         Gateway Addeess         10         230         32         1           Comn 5         Sensor IP Addeess         10         230         32         1         1	
	Set IP Addecs Ext	



#### After changing the IP address you must setup your laptop for this gateway:

	yperTerminal						لم ا	গ্রম
	View Call Transfer Help							
	Local Area Connection 2 Properties	<u>?×</u>						
	General Advanced							*
IP	Broadcom NetLink (TM) Gigabit Ether	Configure	9.230					
Ma	This connection uses the following items:		5.240.0					
Ga	W <sup>III</sup> Network Monitor Driver     W <sup>III</sup> Internet Protocol (TCP/IP)		2.1					
_	Initel Uninitel Description Transmission Control Photocol/Internet Protoco wide area network protocol that provides come	Properties	TCP/IP) Properties	Local Area Conn	ection 2 Status	<u>?</u> ×		
In	across diverse interconnected networks.	General Vou one out IP cel	tings assigned automatically if your network supports	General Support				
	Show icon in notification area when connects Notify me when this connection has limited or	this capability. Oth the appropriate IP	erwise, you need to ask your network administrator for	Connection Status:		Connected		
Col		C Obtain an IR	address automatically	Duration		09.49.40		
11	OK	- Cuse the follo		Speed:		100.0 Mbps		
A1_		IP address:	10 . 230 . 32 . 51					
Pre	paring device for net	Subnet mask:	255 . 255 . 240 . 0					
		Default gateway	y. 10.230.32.1	Activity	~			
Eth	ernet started on Ifac		server address automatically		Serk — 😼] -	- Received		
	-		wing DNS server addresses:	Packets	4,757.321	2,859,072		
INE	.1>	Preferred DNS : Alternate DNS :			200700			
Tat	ersector CK Software	Alternate DNS s	server.					
	ersector ok sortware		Advanced	Properties	Disable			
			OK Cancel			Close		÷
Connected	,	SCROLL JCAPS	NUM Capture Print echo					
🛃 Start	🕝 🏉 🕑 🔯 📲 😪 🌔	S Windows 🄏	🖁 Address not v 🛛 🛃 Configuring th 🛛 🎝 CK - H	yperTer 🧕 Inbox - Mi	cros 🛠 Ver 1.2 IP_Ad.	📑 🖬 🕷 🙆 🔅	े 🖸 के 😘 🗟 🥥 🎨 🌭 - 6:24	PM

Verify the setup by connecting to the INTERSECTOR via the new IP address:

Chttp://10.230.39.230/ - Windows Internet Explorer		_ <u>8 ×</u>
🚱 💿 💌 👔 http://10.230.39.230/	💌 🔄 🛪 🚼 Google	. م
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help		
👷 Favorites 🖉 http://10.230.39.230/	🏠 Home 🔹 🔝 Feeds (J) 🔹 🖃 Read Mail 🚋 Print 🔹 Page 🗉 Safety 🐖 Tools 🖷 😯	Help + "
		*
Enter Password		
X Ver 1.2	IP_Address_Set	
	CK TCIB	
	Set IP Finished	
	Comm Rot Select Set IP Finished	
	C Comm 2 IP Address 10 230 39 230	
	C (mm 3	
	C Comm 4 Subnet Mask 255 255 240 0	
	C Comm 5 Gateway Address 10 230 32 1	
	Connect Internet 10.230.39.230	
	(© Internet	
	C RS232 Set Password Read Password	
	Set IP Address Exit	
		-
Done	🔂 🚱 Internet   🖓 🔹   🔩 10	
🎒 Start 🕝 🏉 🗿 🔽 🖧 🍖 📃 🗋 3 Windows E 🔹 🎢 http://10.230 🛃 Configuri	ing th 🖣 CK - HyperTer 🗿 Inbox - Micros 🥐 Ver 1.2 IP_A 📑 🖬 👹 🔯 🖏 🐎 🎭	6:26 PM



### MAINTENANCE

No regular maintenance of the INTERSECTOR is required. During the installation and setup of the INTERSECTOR, certain problems may occur. We have attempted to list some common problems and possible solutions. If you need further assistance while installing the INTERSECTOR, please contact MS Sedco Technical Support at (317) 842-2545.

DESCRIPTION OF PROBLEM	SOLUTION
When the TCIB card is plugged in the LED lights do not light up:	<ul> <li>Check for power to the TCIB board.</li> <li>Verify that traffic is present in detection zones. Move Ethernet cable to setup port. Connect PC and verify zone location and sensor aim.</li> </ul>
LED lights are always on:	<ul> <li>Prior to completion of setup the TCIB board will keep LED lights on as a "constant call". Ensure that Ethernet cable is connected to operational port. Connect sensor to computer and setup zones.</li> </ul>
Unable to see setup page when computer is connected:	<ul> <li>Check to ensure that Ethernet cable is connected to sensor</li> <li>Check to ensure that Ethernet cable is plugged into Setup port and laptop is connected to laptop port of the TCIB board</li> <li>With the INTERSECTOR installed and connected to your PC the Ethernet LEDs on the PC should show connection. One LED is connection and should stay on, and the other is data which should blink.</li> <li>Ensure that laptop IP address is set to proper address (as detailed on Page 7 of installation manual)</li> <li>Check LEDs on the TCIB card. If they are not on, the TCIB card is not functioning.</li> <li>Check the Ethernet cable. Plug the cable from the sensor into the operational Ethernet port on the TCIB and see that the LEDs go out to ensure the sensor is functioning properly and there is Ethernet communication.</li> </ul>
Once Ethernet connection is made, and you see the Zone Setup page on your PC you see a message at the top of the page that reads "Sensor Error":	<ul> <li>There is a problem with the sensor that cannot be corrected in the field. Contact your distributor or MS Sedco for further information.</li> </ul>



MAINTENANCE						
DESCRIPTION (CONT.)	SOLUTION (CONT.)					
Unable to detect any vehicles during setup process:	<ul> <li>Put unit in SIMULATION MODE to verify sensor operation.</li> <li>Adjust aim of sensor. Sensor should be pointed toward the center of desired detection area and angled down slightly (2-3° typical).</li> </ul>					
Random numbers are being displayed in your browser:	<ul> <li>Exit current Internet Explorer window and open a new window.</li> </ul>					
There are errors in numbers displayed in your setup windows:	<ul> <li>Go to Setup Menu and click on SET DEFAULT VALUES.</li> </ul>					
Settings are not being saved properly:	<ul> <li>Make sure to wait on web pages to load fully before trying to save settings. Before clicking on additional buttons, ensure that current operations are completed.</li> </ul>					
Vehicles occasionally pass through zone undetected:	<ul> <li>Edit software ZONE SETTINGS. Lengthen ZONE SETTINGS to properly match desired detection areas.</li> <li>Confirm that LEDs come on as expected when vehicles pass through the zones. Note that if the zone is set short, fast cars can "jump" over the zone due to the sample rate of the sensor (20 times per second).</li> </ul>					
Vehicles continue to be shown after they have departed:	<ul> <li>Adjust aiming of sensor to ensure that it is centered and tilted down at a slight angle.</li> </ul>					



### PARTS LIST

- TC-CK1-SBE sensor
- TCIB 2.1 2-output single-slot interface board
- TCIB 4.1 4-output single-slot interface board
- TCIB 4.2 4-output two-slot interface board

#### **ELECTRICAL INTERCONNECTION DETAILS & DRAWINGS** Rear panel interface -**IP67** Ethernet connector Sensor Ethernet mounted on traffic pole Ethernet cable with Visual display power to represents each sensor OPTO OUTPUT. 3 Model for 2 and 4 outputs. **TCIB Card in DETECTOR RACK** Ethernet Four Phase Green Inputs **RS232** Four Ethernet Status **NEMA** setup & **Outputs** card rear laptop panel Four 1 Visual interface Outputs display 2 represents 3 each Opto 4

### SCHEMATICS

Schematics will be supplied to governmental entities as required.

### ASSEMBLY DRAWINGS

Assembly drawings will be supplied to governmental entities as required.

### **APPENDIX A: SIMULATION MODE**

SIMULATION MODE can be used to demonstrate the INTERSECTOR, confirm proper installation, or learn how to set up zones and use features. For first-time INTERSECTOR installers, SIMULATION MODE can be used to gain an understanding of the sensor setup and some of the sensor's operating characteristics.

To enter SIMULATION MODE, follow these steps:

#### Start with MAIN PAGE.

- 1. Click on SETUP.
- 2. Enter 1 for SIMULATION MODE ON and click on SIMULATION MODE ON. This enables SIMULATION MODE.
- 3. Click on BACK.
- 4. Click on ZONE SETTING. When this page loads you will see one vehicle pass through the grid.
  - a. Note the ID of the object increments by one each time.
  - b. Vehicles are sequentially numbered from 0 to 63 and then the numbering loops back to 0.
  - c. You can STOP the display to copy X and Y locations to any Zone. Vehicle tracking is fully working while the display is stopped.
  - d. You can set up a zone for this object manually. Note the zone turning yellow when you change any parameter on the zone. You must click on SET ZONE DATA or any changes are lost.
  - e. To use AUTO DETECT click on the check box when the vehicle is at the top of the grid. Note that as it goes through the stop bar the screen will freeze and update the angle. It will stay at zero since the vehicle is going vertically. The number 20 is the distance in front and behind the stop bar which INTERSECTOR uses to calculate and correct for angle of travel of cars. In other words it looks at Y =120 and Y=80 and using the X value for each point determines the offset angle to make cars go through straight. The value 20 can be reduced or increased but this is a good starting point. 10 may work better for smaller intersections.
  - f. The zone will begin working when you enter the X dimension for this vehicle. Note it is typically -16 feet for Zone 1. Enter this number (-16) for Zone 1 X cell. Click on SET ZONE DATA. Note the vehicle will go through the center of the zone now and Zone 1 counter will increment each time the vehicle goes through the zone. OPTO OUTPUT 1 will also turn red indicating detection.
- 5. Go back to SIMULATION MODE ON and enter 16. Click on back and then click on ZONE SETTING.
- 6. Now you will see 16 vehicles going through the grid. NOTE: in SIMULATION MODE, Delay Before Max Time is not valid and the objects stay on the screen forever.
- 7. Now we will shift the grid to show how to center the vehicles and then expand the grid to see zones in detail. Enter 100 for Move Left Or Right. Note the screen shifts right. The grids shift right also.

### **APPENDIX A: SIMULATION MODE (CONT.)**

- 8. Check BREAD CRUMBS. Note the crumbs left as each car travels through. Uncheck and the crumbs disappear.
- 9. Open drop box for FEET and METRIC and chose METRIC. Note all dimensions have been changed to metric. If you save in metric and then go back to English you may have rounding errors (e.g. 100 feet will become 99.99).
- 10.Note the clock. This is an hour meter for INTERSECTOR. Time is saved every 30 minutes. If you unplug before 30 minutes it resets to zero again. If you unplug at 31 minutes it will reset to 31 minutes.
- 11. To add a second zone use Zone 2 and enter 2 for OPTO OUTPUT. Enter 16 for X to center this zone on one lane of cars. Click on SET ZONE DATA. Note zone 2 is active and OPTO OUTPUT 2 is active. Click on SET ZONE DATA to store this text.
- 12. Typical set up for a zone would be to overlap side by side zones by 1 foot. Adjust the WIDTH OF ZONE to get 1 foot overlap. The overlap is visible as darker area. If a vehicle enters that area both Zones will be activated.
- 13. To copy data, click on STOP. The vehicles will stop on the display but moving vehicles are still being tracked. Set ZONE SELECT to 3. Select ID to any vehicle you would like to set a zone at. Note that the ID number is different from the Vehicle number, which appears in the second column and in the chart. Note the X and Y position of this ID and then click on COPY DATA. Those X and Y values are now in the table. Set OPTO OUTPUT for zone 3 to 4. Click on START. Now you have created a new zone that will activate OPTO OUTPUT 4. To take the unit back to its initial settings, go to MAIN MENU, click on SETUP, then click on SET DEFAULT VALUES. Upon returning to ZONE SETTING, all values should be back to factory settings.
- 14. When finished, click on BACK, then on SETUP, then on SIMULATION MODE OFF.


# **APPENDIX B: TCIB Connections**



# TCIB Pin Out (Blue active)

Pin	Function	Pin	Function
Α	DC (-)	1	Chl. 1 Phase Green Input
<b>B</b>	DC (+)		Chl. 2 Phase Green Input
С	Reset Input		Chl. 3 Phase Green Input
D	Chl. 1 Loop Input	4	Chl. 1 Loop Input
Е	Chl. 1 Loop Input		Chl. 1 Loop Input
F	Chl. 1 Out Drain	6	No Connection
	Chl. 1 Out Source		
J	Chl. 2 Loop Input	8	Chl. 2 Loop Input
κ	Chl. 2 Loop Input	9	Chl. 2 Loop Input
L	Chassis Ground	10	Chl. 4 Phase Green Input
M	No Connection	11	No Connection
	No Connection		
Ρ	Chl. 3 Loop Input	13	Chl. 3 Loop Input
R	Chl. 3 Loop Input	14	Chl. 3 Loop Input
<b>S</b>	Chl. 3 Out Drain	15	No Connection
Τ	Chl. 3 Out Source	16	Chl. 3 TS 2 Status Output
U	Chl. 4 Loop Input	17	Chl. 4 Loop Input
V	Chl. 4 Loop Input	18	Chl. 4 Loop Input
<b>W</b>	Chl. 2 Out Drain	19	No Connection
X	Chl. 2 Out Source	20	Chl. 2 TS 2 Status Output
Υ	Chl. 4 Out Drain	21	No Connection
Ζ	Chl. 4 Out Source		Chl.4 TS 2 Status Output



# **APPENDIX C: Windows 7 Set-up**

To complete Windows 7 Set-up, follow these steps:

- Select "Start" in the lower left corner of Windows 7.
- Select "Control Panel".
- Select "Network and Sharing Center".
   Adjust your computer's settings

Adjust your computer's settings				View by: Small icons *
Action Center	administrative Tools	a AutoPlay	Backup and Restore	Color Management
Credential Manager	Plate and Time	@ Default Programs	📑 Desktop Gadgets	a Device Manager
Devices and Printers	Display	S Ease of Access Center	Folder Options	E Fonts
Getting Started	NomeGroup	A Indexing Options	Conternet Options	I Keyboard
Incation and Other Sensors	( Mail (32-bit)	J Mouse	Vetwork and Sharing Center	Rotification Area Icone
Parantal Controls	Performance Information and Tools	Personalization	Phone and Modern	Power Options
Frograms and Features	QuickTime (32-bit)	2 Realtek HD Audio Manager	C Recovery	Argion and Language
RemoteApp and Desktop Connections	4 Sound	Speech Recognition	😗 Symantec LiveUpdate (32-bit)	(1) Sync Canter
System	Taskbar and Start Menu	Troubleshooting	R User Accounts	S Windows Anytime Upgrade
Windows CardSpace	Mil Windows Defender	P Windows Firewalt	😌 Windows Live Language Setting	Windows Mobility Center
Windows Update				

- 🚳 ⊘ 📜 🔉 🧭 📴 🜉 - R - 41 823 😋 🔍 🛛 😫 🛊 Control Panel 🔹 All Co ellterni + N .... ur basic n See full ma . 9 0 pter settings Scott-PC ced sharing Public ne Set up a new connection or network. Set up a wireless, broadband, dial-up, ad hoc, or VPN Connect to a network Connect or reconnect to a wireless, wired, dial-up, or VPN netw \* Choose homegroup and sharing options Access files and printers located on other network computers, or change sharing Troubleshoot problems Diagnose and repair network problems, or get to 🚯 💋 🚞 🖸 🧭 📴 🐺 🐘 - R -4 4 B27 AM
- Select "Change Adaptor Settings".



MS Sedco INTERSECTOR Installation Instructions

OK Cencel

🚳 💋 🛄 🖸 🧭 💁 🖤

INTERSECTOR-1.9Uv092717

- R -4 4 828 AM

**INTERSECTOR** 



## **APPENDIX C: Windows 7 Set-up**

Advanced... OK Cancel

al Alternate Configuration

in an P address auto Little the folk ino P address

Cotan DNS server address a () Use the following DNS server addre

[] Val

You can get IP settings assigned automatically if your network supports this capability. Otherwise, you need to ask your network administrator for the appropriate IP settings.

🚱 💋 📜 🔉 😕 💁 👑 🗎

The Subnet Mask will • automatically fill in the correct address.

Select "Use the

and type in (192.168.0.99).

•

Click "OK" to save • setup.



🚱 💋 🚞 🖸 🥂 📴 📟

- R → ← 829 AM 3/14/2011

- Br -4 4 8-29 AM



# **INTERSECTOR1.9U SOFTWARE ADDENDUM**

This addendum details changes to the following conditions:

- TC-CK1-SBE main board software is upgraded to 1.9U
- · Radar firmware upgraded to 229-05-8
- TCIB software upgraded to 1.4S

D MI-Sela inseaso in X	E - 0		
	9,	*	1
MS-Sedco, Inc.			
Intersector Program V1.9U (229-05-8)			
1 Instage See up for unsolution much river Etherinet			
2 Zone Serting for up the tone values on a Etherapet			
* 18 VEDCO Engineered in Matum			

0 8 8 8 9 9 9 0

**TC-CK1-SBE 1.9U UPDATES** 

There are five key features that change in the 1.9U software:

- 1. Rain Failsafe
- 2. Automated OZP
- 3. Zone Clear Feature
- 4. Save and Load Zone Data
- 5. Bicycle Classification Sensitivity

# **EXPLANATION OF CHANGES**

# **Rain Failsafe**

The 1.9U version of INTERSECTOR software calculates a Rain Intensity Factor by counting the number of raindrops detected within the first 10 feet of the radar's view and measuring the size of the drops. The Rain Intensity Factor and Rain Flag are displayed on the Zone Settings page above the grid. As shown in Figure 1, Rain Intensity Factor is the first number.





# Rain Failsafe (continued)

If this exceeds the Rain Counter Threshold, which can be found and adjusted on the Setup page, as shown in Figure 2, the message "RAIN" is displayed just to the right of Rain Intensity Factor. When this happens, the INTERSECTOR and associated TCIB(s) will go into RECALL. This will continue until the Rain Intensity Factor has dropped below the Rain Counter Threshold and remains there for 5 minutes.

The Default setting for Rain Counter Threshold is 1000, which specifies heavy rainfall, as shown on the graph in Figure 3. Blowing winds that cause rain to be directed at the INTERSECTOR could also affect the Rain Intensity Factor. Increasing the Rain Counter Threshold will decrease sensitivity to rain. Decreasing the Rain Counter Threshold will increase rain sensitivity. The maximum accepted value is 5000. To disable rain detection, set the Rain Counter Threshold to 5000.

	Figure 2
	MS-Sedco Intersector Sei 🗙
←	→ C ③ 192.168.0.100/Setup.htm
Back	(
	Simulation Mode On 16
	Simulation Mode Off
	Set Default Values
	Delay Before Max 120
	OZP / Max Time
	Rain Counter Threshold 1000
	Set RF Channel 1
	Set Clear Time 1.0
	Clear Speed 2.0
	Bike Sensitivity 1500
	Save Zone Data
	Load Zone Data

Figure 3



# Automated OZP

In previous versions of INTERSECTOR software, a timer called Delay Before Max (DBM) is assigned to a vehicle once it stops moving. The stopped vehicle is held in its last reported position until its DBM timer expires, or the vehicle moves. If a vehicle stops in the zone, the DBM timer will begin counting down. Should this same vehicle move, the DBM timer will reset to its original max value. If the vehicle stops again, the DBM timer would begin counting down again. In addition to DBM, the INTERSECTOR utilizes a second timer, Occlusion Zone Protection (OZP), that is applied to the last vehicle in a zone, when its DBM timer has expired or it disappears from detection due to occlusion.

In the 1.9U version of INTERSECTOR software, the user can change how stopped or occluded vehicles are processed. By clearing the OZP / Max Time value on the Setup page, if an OZP event happens (vehicle is occluded) to the last vehicle in a zone, the remaining time on the DBM timer for the vehicle is assigned to OZP and the vehicle is held at its last position until time expires, or the vehicle begins moving again. The default value for DBM is 120, and the default value for OZP / Max Time is null (no value). If a value is entered in the OZP/Max Time field, the unit will operate as it did in previous software versions.

	Figure 4
	MS-Sedco Intersector Se 🗙
$\leftarrow$	C 192.168.0.100/Setup.htm
Back	
	Simulation Mode On 16
	Simulation Mode Off
	Set Default Values
	Delay Before Max 120
	OZP / Max Time
	Rain Counter Threshold 1000
	Set RF Channel 1
	Set Clear Time 1.0
	Clear Speed 2.0
	Bike Sensitivity 1500
	Save Zone Data
	Load Zone Data

# INTERSECTOR

0

# **EXPLANATION OF CHANGES (CONTINUED)**

warde H

Select 1 + ID 1 + Copy Data Clear Vehicle Count

← C @ 192.168.0.10

Set Zone Data

Target Setup Table

# Automated OZP (continued)

In addition to these changes, the DBM timer setting for a stopped vehicle is now displayed on the Zone Setting page, in the Vehicle Table. When a vehicle is stopped, its classification field is changed to the remaining DBM timer value. Once the vehicle speed is greater than 0, the classification field will switch back, as shown in Figure 5.

# **Zone Clear Feature**

The new Clear feature allows the user to set automatic timing for clearing hung vehicles as traffic begins to move. The INTERSECTOR will track vehicles as they begin to leave the detection zones. Once a vehicle has moved 10 feet past the front edge of the zone, the value in the "Set Clear Time" field will begin counting down. Any vehicles that did not

Void Sector Interest of 1 X     Void Sector Interest of 1 X     Void Sector Sector Interest of 1 X     Void Sector Sector Interest of 1 X     Void Sector	
ada immunie klaie (b) 10 immunie klaie (b)	🖾 - o ×
Benchman Monie Con     Im       Benchman Monie Con     Im       Benchman Monie Con     Im       Convertient Monie Con     Im       Benchman Monie Con     Im	Q \$
Browniek         COD           Brodzenie         COD           CARD Marken         COD           CARD Marken         COD           Card Charlen         D           Charlen Charlen         D           C	
Browniek         COD           Brodzenie         COD           CARD Marken         COD           CARD Marken         COD           Card Charlen         D           Charlen Charlen         D           C	
Bet Databal Salami       [Sent Databal Salami       [Sent Charles Trended]       Bet Charles Trended]       [Sent Databal]       [Sent Databal]       [Sent Databal]       [Sent Databal]	
Description Max 201 Description Terms Web Sectors for the sector Sect	
029/Min hmi	
Exit Control [1000]         000           (Feld Reserve [1])         000	
(Bell M Channel)     3       (Bell Chan Thrus)     3.9       (Dest Spanse)     2.0       (Ben Spanse)     1.00       (Sen Spanse)     1.00	
Line Case France 2.2 Conception 2.2 Min Sciences, 1980	
Concept 27 T	
Ban (example) - Size -	
Tana Zana Zana	
Land Shee Bark	

reach the "Clear Speed" once the front vehicle has departed will be cleared after the timer has expired. Both the "Set Clear Time" and "Clear Speed" fields are configurable on the Setup page, as shown in Figure 6. Default value for "Set Clear Time" is 1.0 seconds. Default value for "Clear Speed" is 2.0 mph. Ranges for these fields are from 0.0 to 10.0. To disable this feature, set "Set Clear Time" to 0.

0 8 🖬 🖄 🧑 🖬 🔮

#### Figure 5

Uast Select Net .

Auto Detect 20

M Tech Mode Bread Crumb

Configure

1034AM

# Save and Load Zone Data

The Save and Load Zone Data feature allows the user the ability to store and retrieve INTERSECTOR setup and Zone setting data. When the Save Zone Data button is selected, a text file containing the current values from the Setup and Zone Settings pages will be downloaded to the computer. Selecting Load Zone Data will allow the user to navigate to a location that contains previous save files, using the browser window that appears. Selecting a file and clicking OK will load the saved values into the Setup and Zone Settings pages.



NOTE: Internet Explorer and Microsoft Edge will occasionally fail during upload. Google Chrome and Mozilla Firefox are recommended web browsers for using the Load Zone Data feature.

The interface to Save Zone Data files will depend upon the web browser being used, and which settings are selected. The following sections provide details for using the Save and Load Zone Data feature with the four web browsers previously mentioned.

Figure 7	
D MS-Sedoo Intersector So X	- 0 ×
← → C © 192.168.0.100/5etup.htm	Q 🕁 🗄
C       0 192/140.0100/setup.htm         Exat         Smallen Kole On         Exat         Smallen Kole On         Exat 20         Smallen Kole On         Smallen Kole On         Exat 20         Smallen Kole On         Smale On         Smallen Kole On<	Q X i
📽 Search the web and Windows	∽ <b>%e (⊒</b> 40 (₽) 1034,000 7/27/0017



# **Google Chrome**

When using Google Chrome, anything downloaded by selecting "Save Zone Data" will be automatically saved to the "Downloads" folder. Without changing any Chrome settings, saved data will be represented as shown in Figure 8.

To customize file name and save locations, click on the "Customize and control Google Chrome" menu, and click "Settings" as shown in Figure 9.

# Figure 8







# **Google Chrome (continued)**

When the new window opens, select "Settings" at the upper left, click on "Advanced" and select "Downloads" as shown in Figure 10.

# Figure 10

	IS-Sedco Intersector Se × Settings	×
7	C Ochrome chrome://settings	☆ 🖸 🗾
Setti	ings	٥
•	People	
۹	Appearance	SIGN OUT
Q	Search engine m	
	Default browser	¥
ሀ	On startup	ý.
Adva	nced 🔺	
0	Privacy and security	·
Ê	Passwords and forms	
	Languages	
ŧ	Downloads	
ē	Printing	
Ť	Accessibility	
٩	System	Medium (Recommended) 👻
0	Reset	,
Abou	rt Chrome	100%
		100/8

You can change the default location for downloads by selecting "Change" next to the "Location" setting. You can also enable the slide next to "Ask where to save each file before downloading". Enabling this feature will cause a pop-up window every time you "Save Zone Data". This will allow the user to change the file name

and save location for

Simulation Mode On       101         Simulation Mode Off       Set Default Values         Delay Before Max       90         OZP / Max Time       10         Rain Counter Threshold       5000         Set RF Channel       4				☆	
Simulation Mode On     101       Organize      New folder       Set Default Values     Date modified       Delay Before Max     90       OZP / Max Time     10       Set Re Channel     5000	ck	🕤 Save As			
Simulation Mode Off     Downloads * Name     Date modified     Type       Set Default Values     Documents *     No items match your search.       Delay Before Max     90     Human Resourc       OZP / Max Time     10     Screen Shots 201       Rain Counter Threshold     5000       Set RF Channel     4	Simulation Mode On 101		✓ Ö Search Archive	B== •	
	Set Default Values       Delay Before Max     90       OZP / Max Time     10       Rain Counter Threshold     5000	Downloads      A Name     Occuments     M     Doccuments     M     Dictures     Human Resourc     Screen Shots 201			
	Set Clear Time     1.0       Clear Speed     2.0       Bike Sensitivity     2000	Network     V     Sile name: Intersector_Save_Test_20170727_1649			28

Figure 11

each download, as shown in Figure 11.



### **Mozilla Firefox**

When using Mozilla Firefox, a pop-up window will ask "What should Firefox do with this file?" Your options are to "Open with" or "Save File" as shown in Figure 12.

192.168.0.100/Setup.htm	C         Q Search         ☆         ê         ♣         ♠
st Visited   🕲 Lab Intersector	
	Opening Zone_data.txt X
Simulation Mode On 101	You have chosen to open:
Simulation Mode Off	Zone_data.txt
Set Default Values	which is: Text Document (1.0 KB) from: http://192.168.0.100
	What should Firefox do with this file?
Delay Before Max 90	O Open with Notepad (default)
OZP / Max Time 10	Save File
Rain Counter Threshold 5000	D Do this <u>a</u> utomatically for files like this from now on.
Set RF Channel 4	
Set Clear Time 1.0	OK Cancel
Clear Speed 2.0	
Bike Sensitivity 2000	
Save Zone Data	
Load Zone Data	

Figure 12

Figure 13

To change the location where files are saved, click on "Open menu" at the upper right, and select "Options" as shown in Figure 13.



# INTERSECTOR

# **EXPLANATION OF CHANGES (CONTINUED)**

# Mozilla Firefox (continued)

Select "Always ask me where to save files" option on the General Tab under Downloads, as shown in Figure 14. This will cause a pop-up "Save As" window to appear when "Save Zone Data" is selected, as shown in Figure 15.

× 🕸 Options	×	+		-		×
ences	G	Q Search	☆ 自	<b>∔</b>	◙	Ξ
ctor						
General					(?)	
Startup Always check if	Firefox is your o	lefault browser				
Firefox is not y	our default bro	owser	N	lake <u>D</u> efau	ult	
When Firefox <u>s</u> tarts: Home <u>P</u> age:	-				•	
	Use <u>C</u> urrent Pa	ge Use <u>B</u> ookmark.	<u>R</u> estor	e to Defau	ılt	
Downloads						
Save files to	Downloads	i.		Br <u>o</u> wse.		
Tabs       Ctrl+ <u>Tab cycles</u>	through tabs in	recently used order				
	ences ctor General Startup Always check if Firefox is not y When Firefox starts: Home Page: Downloads Always ask you Tabs Ctrl+Tab cycles	ences C ctor	ences C Q Search ctor General Startup Always check if Firefox is your default browser Firefox is not your default browser When Firefox starts: Show your home page Home Page: Mozilla Firefox Start Page Use Qurrent Page Use Bookmark. Downloads Saye files to Downloads Always ask you where to save files Tabs Ctrl+Jab cycles through tabs in recently used order	ences C Q Search ☆ ctor General Startup Always check if Firefox is your default browser Firefox is not your default browser N When Firefox gtarts: Show your home page Home Page: Mozilla Firefox Start Page Use Current Page Use Bookmark Restor Downloads Save files to Downloads Always ask you where to save files Tabs Ctrl+Jab cycles through tabs in recently used order	ences C Q Search ☆ A market of the search o	× ✿ Options × + ences C Q Search ✿ @ I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I

192.168.0.100/Setup.htm	C Q Search 🔂 🖬	i 🦊 1	
st Visited 🕘 Lab Intersector			
	Enter name of file to save to		×
	← → × ↑ 📴 « Software Version > Archive v ♂ Search Archive	2	Q
Simulation Mode On 101	Organize 🔻 New folder		0
Simulation Mode Off	🕹 Downloads 🖈 ^ Name ^ Date mo	odified	Туре
Set Default Values	Documents 🖈 No items match your search.		
Delay Before Max 90	E Pictures		
	Screen Shots 201		
OZP / Max Time 10	Software Version		
Rain Counter Threshold 5000			
Set RF Channel 4	ConeDrive		
Set Clear Time 1.0	This PC		
Clear Speed 2.0	Network     K		
Bike Sensitivity 2000	File name: Intersector_Save_Test_20170727_1702 Save as type: Text Document (*.bxt)		~
	Save as type: Text Document ( .bx)		~
Save Zone Data	▲ Hide Folders Save	Car	ncel



# **Microsoft Edge**

When using Microsoft Edge, downloads are automatically saved to the Downloads folder. A pop-up menu will allow users to Open, Open folder, or View Downloads, as shown in Figure 16.

# Figure 16

Ē =	$\Box$ MS-Sedco Intersector S $\times$	+ ~			-		×
← -	→ ()   192.168.0.100/Set	up.htm	☆	=	h	ß	•••
Back							
	Simulation Mode On 101	1					
	Simulation Mode Off						
	Set Default Values						
	Delay Before Max 90						
	OZP / Max Time 10						
	Rain Counter Threshold 50	000					
	Set RF Channel 4						
	Set Clear Time 1.0						
	Clear Speed 2.0						
	Bike Sensitivity 2000						
	Save Zone Data						
	Load Zone Data						
Zo	ne_data.txt finished downloadi	ng.				×	<
		Open					
Open folder							
	Vie	w downloads					
the second second							

To change options for saving files, select the "More" menu, and click on "Settings", as shown in Figure 17.

$\leftarrow \rightarrow \circlearrowright$ 192.168.0.10 $\frac{\text{Back}}{}$	0/Setup.htm □□ ☆   = ℓ છ ····
Simulation Mode On	New InPrivate window
Simulation Mode Off	Zoom — 100% +
Delay Before Max 90	Cast media to device
OZP / Max Time 10	Find on page
Rain Counter Threshold Set RF Channel 4	Print
Set Clear Time 1.0	Pin this page to Start
Clear Speed 2.0	F12 Developer Tools
Bike Sensitivity 2000	Open with Internet Explorer
Save Zone Data	Send feedback
	Extensions
	What's new and tips



# Microsoft Edge (continued)

Scroll down until "Advanced settings" is displayed, and select "View advanced settings". Enable "Ask me what to do with each download" under the Downloads section, as shown in Figure 18.

#### 🖻 🖅 🗖 MS-Sedco Intersector S 🛛 + 🗸 × $\leftarrow$ → 🕐 | 192.168.0.100/Setup.htm 🛄 🕁 LE ... Back « Advanced settings -🟳 Show the home button Simulation Mode On Off Simulation Mode Off Set Default Values Block pop-ups On On Delay Before Max 90 Use Adobe Flash Player OZP / Max Time 10 On On Rain Counter Threshold Set RF Channel 4 Open sites in apps On On Set Clear Time 1.0 Clear Speed 2.0 Choose which sites open in apps Bike Sensitivity 2000 Downloads Save Zone Data Save downloaded files to Load Zone Data C:\Users\jharris\Downloads Change Ask me what to do with each download On On

After enabling this					1010	
	☐ ☐ MS-Sedco Intersector S × + ∨			-		×
option, whenever "Save	$\leftarrow$ $\rightarrow$ $\circlearrowright$   192.168.0.100/Setup.htm	□ ☆	=	l_	B	•••
Zone Data" is selected,	Back					
a window will appear						
allowing user to "Save	Simulation Mode On 101					
As" and navigate to the	Simulation Mode Off					
desired folder, as	Set Default Values					
shown in Figure 19.	Delay Before Max 90					
C	OZP / Max Time 10					
	Rain Counter Threshold 5000					
	Set RF Channel 4					
	Set Clear Time 1.0					
	Clear Speed 2.0					
	Bike Sensitivity 2000					
	Save Zone Data					
	Load Zone Data					
	Save as Save a		<i>C</i>			
	From: 192.168.0.100 Open Save	<b>^</b>	Ca	ncel	×	



# **Internet Explorer**

When using Internet Explorer, a text file will automatically be opened in the browser. To save the data, open the "Tools" menu, select "File", then select "Save As", as shown in Figure 20.



### Figure 21

In the "Save As" window that appears, navigate to the desired save location and enter the file name. Verify the "Save as type" is "Text File (.txt)" and click "Save", as shown in Figure 21.



# **Bicycle Classification Sensitivity**

The Bike Classification Sensitivity adjustment allows the user to customize how sensitive the INTERSECTOR is for detecting vehicles as either bikes or cars. In some installations, the INTERSECTOR may be more likely to incorrectly classify cars as bicycle traffic, or vice versa. If cars are being misclassified as bikes, decrease the Bike Sensitivity value. If bicycles are being misclassified as cars, increase the Bike Sensitivity value. The adjustment range of this field is between 0 and 5000. The default setting is 1500. Typically, a setting of 300 would accurately classify cars coming from an angle (driveways, roundabouts, etc.), or where bike-only zones are not required. A setting of 1250 to 2000 will offer better accuracy in bike-friendly areas with long, straight approaches.



NOTE: While the Bike Sensitivity setting can assist in correctly classifying bike or cars, the INTERSECTOR mounting is crucial. For best results for bike classification, the INTERSECTOR should be installed between 16 to 20 feet mounting height, using an offset angle between  $0 \pm 10$  degrees, and an additional tilt angle of approximately 3 degrees downward (to a maximum of -9 degrees) relative to the slope of the road. If a vehicle's speed exceeds ~18.7 mph, it will always be classified as a car.

Figure 22					
D M5-Sedco Intersector Sir x	_ o ×				
← → C (Q) 192.168.0.100/5etup.htm	વ ☆ ા				
Rask L	59.527.631H 68				
Simulation Mode On 18					
Simulation Mode Off					
Set Defail Values					
Delay Before Max					
O2P / Max Ime					
Rain Counter Threadold 1000					
Set RF Chancel 1					
Set Clear Tene 1.0					
Clear Speed 2.0					
Bias Semativity   1500					
Save Zone Data					
Load Zone Data					
📲 Search the web and Windows 🕕 🤤 🗮 🛱 👩 🔯 🥥	へ 📟 🕎 d0 🔋 10:34 AM 7/27/2017				
	0.000				